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BayCorp IIoldings, Ltd.

Letter to Shareholders

To the Shareholders of BayCorp IIoldings, Ltd.:

During 1997, three important developments influenced BayCorp. First,1997 was a
refueling year at the Seabrook Plant. Second, the price of short-term power sales increased more
than 10% from the previous year, strongly affecting financial performance. Lastly, deregulation
of generation in the electric industry continued its course, having modest effects on 1997 results,
but with the portent ofimportant changes in the future.

With the reduced generation that results in a refueling year, operating revenues fell from
$30.3 million in 1996 to $26.6 million in 1997 and the Company's operating loss increased from
$2.2 million to $10.2 million. The Company's revenues are a product of two basic components:
(1) the number of kilowatt hours of electricity Seabrook produces during any period, and (2) the ;

price that the Company realizes from the sale of tho e kilowatt hours. While the Company does
'

not have operating responsibility for the Seabrook plant, the Company's results are highly
dependent upon the performance of the plant. The plant's capacity factor in 1997 was 78.3% as
compared to 96.5% in 1996. This resulted in the Company having approximately 230 million
fewer kilowatt-hours of electricity for sale in 1997 as compared to 1996.

The good news is that the overall average sales price realized by the Company in 1997 |
increased 9.1% to 2.76 cents per kWh from 2.53 cents per kWh in 1996. Prices obtained for the l

Company's approximately 130 MW of power not committed under long-term contracts increased
10.3% to 2.57 cents per kWh from 2.33 cents per kWh in 1996. We believe sales results thus far
in 1998 indicate a continued firming of prices in New England. This increase in prices appears to
be primarily attributable to wholesale power buyers becoming increasingly concerned about
reduced operating capacity in New England due to the permanent closing of the Maine Yankee
and Connecticut Yankee plants and the current shutdown of the three Millstone nuclear units in
Connecticut. According to Northeast Utilities, the operator of the Millstone units, Millstone 3 is
scheduled to return to service sometime during the second quarter of 1998. Return dates for
Millstone 1 and Millstone 2 are less certain.

As mentioned above, in 1997 the Company had significantly fewer kilowatt hours of
electricity to sell due to a lower capacity factor at Seabrook. During 1997, Seabrook underwent a
scheduled refueling outage cf 50 days (compared to an anticipated duration of 40 days) and an
unscheduled outage that lasted for most of the month of December. The plant retumed to
operation in middanuary 1998 and, as of this writing, coritinues to operate at full load. There is
no scheduled refueling outage in 1998. The next scheduled refueling will be in the spring of
1999. As a result of the reduced operatmg performance in 1997, North Atlantic Energy Servi;es

'

Comoration, the operator of Seabrook, is implementing both short-term and long-term strategic,

plans to return to top-tier operating performance, such as the year 1996. We will carefully
monitor NAESCO's success in making Seabrook's performance world class.

!
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The Company's cost of power from the Seabrook plant (determined by dividing the
Company's total operating expenses by its share of the power produced) increased 40.8% to 3.83
cents per kWh in 1997 as compared to 2.72 cents per kWh in 1996. This increase was primarily
the result of the availability of fewer kilowatt hours of generation over which to spread our costs.

The wide cost swings which occur between refueling and non-refueling years at
j Seabrook may make it difficult for current and prospective shareholders to fully evaluate the
! Company's cost structure. As I have trentioned in past letters, we are acutely aware that in a

deregulated, commodity business a company must control its costs or face extinction.
Unfortunately, the twelve-month accounting cycle required by Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles does not coincide with the nominal 18 month refueling cycle at Seabrook. Our goal is
to provide current and prospective shareholders with the information they need to make an
informed investment decision about our Company. In an effort to help investors better,

understand the Company's financial performance, I have included a table on the following page
l that summarizes the Company's operating costs over the latest full operating cycle at Seabrook,

which ran from December 1995 through May 1997.

Deregulation of the electric utility industry continues to move forward in New England.
While the commencement of retail competition in New llampshire has been delayed due to

i litigation between Public Service of New IIampshire and the State of New Ilampshire,
! Massachusetts and Rhode Island are on track to begin retail competition in 1998. As part of the

deregulation of the industry, generation is being unbundled from transmission and distribution.
Agreements for the divestiture of conventional generation assets have already been signed
between several New England utilities and non-New England generation companies. US
Generating Company, Sithe Energy and Florida Power & Light are several of the new entrants
who are making significant investments in the New England generation market. Presumably
these buyers see an attractive future for deregulated generation and market prices for power in
New England. While no sales of nuclear ownership interests have been completed as part of
these divestitures, we believe that a well-run, relatively new nuclear plant such as Seabrook will
be a strong competitor in a deregulated market.

in preparation for competition in New England the Independent System Operator
commenced operation in 1997. ISO New England Inc. will oversee the reliability of the system
and implement the new competitive markets for wholesale power, including a market-based bid
system and market clearing price. The new markets are scheduled to be introduced in late 1998.
This should greatly improve liquidity and price transparency for power trading in New tingland.

The next several years promise to be exciting and landmark times for the electric utility
industry in New England and the rest of the United States. We remain focused on identifying and
seizing profitable opportunities as they present themselves. In particular, we continue to seek
opportunities to acquire additional generation and grow our existing 140 megawatts, but only if
such an acquisition is consistent with maintaining and enhancing our low cost position.

John A. Tillinghast
President and CEO

March 1998

.
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Cycle 5 Operating Costs I

The Seabrook Nuclear Power Project operates on a nominal 18 month period between
refueling outages. The actual period betwe:n refueling outages depends both on the amount of the
fuel that is put into the reactor during refueling and the amount of unscheduled outages that occur

- during a given fuel cycle. At the end of each cycle, Seabrook begins a scheduled refueling outage ;

to refuel the reactor and to perform maintenance. Because the Seabrook Project runs on a cycle :
that covers more than one fiscal year, financial comparisons on a year to year basis may not i

always provide the most useful information to the reader. Accordingly, the following selected
financial information is intended to summarize the Company's cost structure over the most recent i

operating cycle, which lasted from December 1995 through May 1997. That was the fifth ;
. operating fuel cycle at Seabrook since the plant commenced operations in August 1990. 1

Due to its non-recurring nature, this presentation does not include approximately $7.0
million in other income derived from the sale of steam generators from Seabrook Unit 2, which
occurred in the third quarter of 1996.

!,

Selected Great Bay Financial Information

(unaudited. dollar amounts in thousands)

Seabrook Project Cycle 5 Refueling

Seabrook Cycle 5 Generation (kWh)(Great Bay Share) 1,690,176,800

Cycle 5 Operating Costs:

Seabrook Operating and Maintenance $22,078

Seabrook Administrative and General 5,873

Nuclear Fuel 6,691

New Hampshire Nuclear Station Taxes 1,365 I"

Seabrook Station Local Property Taxes 4,337
}

Transmission 1,333 ;
~

Capital Expenditures 2,912 -

Corporate Administrative and General 5,016

Decommissioning Trust Fund Payments 1,536

Interest Earned on Cash and Equivalents (1,894)

i Total Cycle 5 Operating Costs $49,247 i

f ;

!

| .

Cycle 5 Operating Costs (cents per kWh) 2.91

|

I
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PARTI

Item 1. Business.

Introduction

BayCorp floidings, Ltd. ("BayCorp" or the " Company") serves as a holding company for Great Bay
Power Corporation (" Great Bay") Great Bay is an electric generating company whose principal asset is a
12.1% joint ownership interest in the Seabrook Nuclear Power Project in Seabrook, New Ilampshire (the
"Seabrook Project"). Great Bay is an exempt wholesale generator ("EWG") under the Public Utility
liolding Company Act of 1935 ("PUHCA"). Unlike regulated public utilities, Great Bay has no franchise
area or captive customers. Great Bay sells its power in the competitive wholesale power markets.

,

Great Bay became a wholly-owned subsidiary of BayCorp in a corporate reorganization that involved a
merger of a newly-formed wholly-owned subsidiary of Ba> Corp with and into Great Bay on January 24,1997.
The consolidated assets and liabilities of Great Bay and its subsidiaries immediately before the reorganization ,

were the same as the consolidated assets and liabilities of BayCorp and its subsidiaries immediately after the
reorganization. Currently, Great Bay is the sole subsidiary of BayCorp. BayCorp's principal asset is its 100%
equity interest in Great Bay. The new corporate structure enables BayCorp, either directly or through

.

l

subsidiaries other than Great Bay, to engage in businesses that Great Bay would be prohibited from pursuing |

due to its status as an EWG under the PUllCA. BayCorp may in the future enter into new businesses or
acquire existing businesses, both in energy related fields and possibly in unrelated fields.

4

'

BayCorp was incorporated in Delaware in 1996. Great Bay was incorporated in New llampshire in 1986
and was formerly known as EUA Power Corporation. Great Bay sells its share of the electricity output of the
Seabrook Project in the wholesale electricity market, primarily in the Northeast United States. Neither
BayCorp nor Great Bay has operational responsibilities for the Seabrook Project. Great Bay's share of the
Seabrook Project capacity is approximately 140 megawatts ("MW"). Great Bay currently sells all but 10 MW
of its share of the Seabrook Project capacity in the wholesale short-term market.

Great Bay filed a voluntary petition for reorganization under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy
Code in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of New llampshire on February 28,1991. It
conducted its business as a Debtor in Possession until November 23,1994, at which time it emerged from
Chapter 11.

The Seabrook Project

The Seabrook Project is located on an 896-acre site in Seabrook, New 11ampshire. It is owned by Great

|_
Bay and ten other utility companies, consisting of North Atlantic Energy Company, Connecticut Light and

i Power, The United illuminating Company, Canal Electric Company, Massachusetts Municipal Wholesale
Electric Company, Montaup Electric Company, New England Power Company, New Ilampshire Electric
Cooperative, Inc., Taunton Municipal Lighting Plant and lludson Light & Power Department (together with,

| Great Bay, the " Participants").
| |

|
Seabrook Unit 1 is a 1,150-MW nuclear-fueled steam electncity generatmg station.11 employs a four

' loop, pressurized water reactor and support auxiliary systems designed by the Westinghouse Electric
| Company. The reactor is housed in a steel-lined reinforced concrete containment structure and a concrete 1

| containment enclosure structure. Reactor cooling water is obtained from the Atlantic Ocean through a
17.000-foot-long intake tunnel and returned through a 16,500-foot-long discharge tunnel. The station has a
remaining expected service life of 28 years. Seabrook Unit I transmits its generated power to the Nev.
England 345 kilovolt transmission grid, a major network of interconnecting lines covering New England,
through three separate transmission lines emanating from the station. On March 15, 1990, the Participants

i

received from the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (the "NRC") a full power operating license which
authorizes operation of Seabrook Unit I until October 2026. Commercial operation of Seabrook Unit I
commenced on August 19,1990. Management believes that Seabrook Unit 1 is in good condition.



Since the Seabrook Project was originally designed to consist of two generating units, Great Bay also
!owns a 12.1% joint ownership interest in Seabrook Unit 2. Great Bay assigns no value to Seabrook Unit 2

because on November 6,1986, the joint owners of the Seabrook Project voted to dispose of Unit 2. Certain
assets of Seabrook Unit 2 have been and are being sold from time to time to third parties. On July 22,1996, j

the Participants completed the sale of four unused steam generators from Seabrook Unit 2. Great Bay 1

received $7,036,792 in cash from the proceeds of this sale on July 19,1996. Great Bay had previously written j
olT its investment in Unit 2 and recognized a gain from this sale in the third quarter of 1996. There were no '

material sales of Unit 2 assets in 1997.

The Participants are considering additional plans regarding disposition of Seabrook Unit 2, but such plans
have not yet been finalized and approved. Great Bay is unable to estimate the costs for which it will be
responsible in connection with the disposition of Seabrook Unit 2. Because Seabrook Unit 2 was never ;

completed or operated, costs associated with its disposition will not include any amounts for decommissioning. ;

Great Bay currently pays its share of monthly expenses required to preserve and protect the value of the
Seabrook Unit 2 components.

Joint Ownership of Seabrook

Great Bay and the other Participants are parties to the Agreement for Joint Ownership, Construction and
Operation of New Hampshire Nuclear Units (the "JOA"), which establishes the respective ownership
interests of the Participants in the Seabrook Project and defines their responsibilities with respect to the
ongoing operation, maintenance and decommissioning of the Seabrook Project. In general, all ongoing costs of
the Seabrook Project, other than taxes, are divided proportionately among the Participants in accordance with
their ownership interests in the Seabrook Project. Each Participant is only liable for its share of the Seabrook
Project's costs and not liable for any other Participant's si.are. Great Bay's joint ou nership interest of 12.1% is
the third largest interest among the Participants, exceeded only by the approximately 40% interest held by
Northeast Utilities and its alIlliates and the 17.5% interest held by The United Illuminating Company.

A Participant may sell any portion of its ownership interest to any entity that is engaged in the electric
utility business in New England. Before such sale, however, such selling Participant must give certain other
Participants the right of first refusal to purchase the interest on the same terms. Any Participant may transfer,
free from the (oregoing right of first refusal, any portion ofits interest (a) to a w holly-owned subsidiary, (b) to
another company in the same holding cornpany system or a construction trust for the benefit of the transferor
or another company in the same holding company system, or (c) in connection with a merger, consolidation or
acquisition of substantially all of the properties or all of the generating facilities of a Participant.

The failure to make monthly payments under the JOA by owners of the Seabrook Project other than >

Great Bay may have a material efTect on Great Bay by requiring Great Bay to pay a greater proportion of the
Seabrook Unit I and Seabrook Unit 2 expenses in order to preserve the value of its share of the Seabrook
Project. In the past, certain of the owners of the Seabrook Project other than Great Bay have not made their
full respective payments. At the current time, the electric utility industry is undergoing significant changes as
competition and deregulation are introduced into the marketplace. Some utilities, including certain Partici-
pants, have indicated in state regulatory proceedings that they may be forced to seek bankruptcy protection if
regulators, as part of the indu:,try restructuring, do not allow for full recovery of stranded costs. If a Participant
other than Great Bay filed for bankruptcy, and that Participant was unable to pay its share of Seabrook Project
expenses, Great Bay might be required to pay a greater portion of Seabrook Project expenses. In the past, the
filing of bankruptcy by a Participant has not resulted in a failure to pay Seabrook Project expenses or an

(' increase in the percentage of expenses paid by other Participants.
|

| On February 28,1997, the New llampshire Public Utilities Commission ("NilPUC") issued an order

|
requiring stranded cost recovery to be based on the average market price of electricity in New England, rather
than cost-based rate making methods that are more favorable to certain Participants. On March 10,1997,one'

of the Participants, Northeast Utilities (along with three of its subsidiaries), recbed a temporary restraining
order from the U.S. District Court for the District of Rhode Island. This tempoury restraining order stayed
the NilPUC's February 28,1997 order to the extent that the order established a rate methodology that is not

2
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designed to recover the cost of providing service and would require Northeast Utilities and certain of its j
afliliates to write-off any regulatory assets. If this stay or a similar court action does not remain in efTect, the i

, NilPUC's methodology could require Northeast Utilities and certain of its atliliates to remove certain )
( regulatory assets from their respective balance sheets. According to Northeast Utilities, the amount of that

!

potential write-oft is currently estimated at over $400 million, after taxes.

| The JOA provides for a Managing Agent to carry out the daily operational and management
responsibilities of the Seabrook Project. The current Managing Agent, appointed by certain of the Participants
on June 29,1992,is North Atlantic Energy Service Corporation ("N AESCO"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Northeast Utilities. Northeast Utilities, in conjunction with certain of its aflitiates, holds the largest joint
ownership interest, as described above. Certain material decisions regarding the Seabrook Project are made by
an Executive Committee consisting of the chief executive oflicers of certain of the Participants or their
designees. There are currently five members of the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee acts by a
majority vote of its members, although any action of the Executive Committee may be modified by vote of
51% of the ownership interests. Great Bay does not have a representative on the Executive Committee, but
does have a representative on the Audit Committee, Budget Committee and Non-Operating Participants
Committee related to the Seabrook Project. John A. Tillinghast, the Company's President and Chief I
Executive Ollicer, is currently Chairman of the Non-Operating Participants Committee. Under the JOA, the
managing agent of the Seabrook Project may be removed and a new managing agent appointed by a 51% I

interest of the Participants.

!
Recent Deselopments )

On January 24,1997, Great Bay completed the formation of a holding company structure for Great Bay.
As a result of the restructuring, Great Bay became a wholly-owned subsidiary of BayCorp. Shareholders of j
Great Bay received one share of BayCorp common stock for each share of Great Bay common stock that they '

owned. In connection with the restructuring, Great Bay common stock ceased to be quoted on the Nasdaq |
National Market and the new BayCorp common stock was listed for trading on the American Stock Exchange i

under the symbol "MWil" on January 28,1997. |

On January 27,1997, the NRC issued to Great Bay a temporary exemption from the obligation of Great
Bay to comply with the NRC's regulations applicable to a non " electric utility" owner of an interest in a
nuclear power plant. The NRC staff stated in the exemption that it believed that Great Bay does not currently
satisfy the NRC definition of" electric utility." If Great Bay is an " electric utility," then Great Bay may satisfy
the NRC decommissioning requirements through its monthly payments into a decommissioning trust fund.
See "- Decommissioning." If Great Bay is not an " electric utility," the NRC could require that Great Bay
provide a surety bond or other allowable funding assurance mechanism.

The temporary exemption granted Great Bay six months to establish itself as an " electric utility" or
obtain a surety bond or other allowable decommissioning funding mechanism. In February 1997, Great Bay
requested that the NRC reconsider the staffs finding that Great Bay does not meet the NRC definition of
" electric utility." Great Bay * a requested that the NRC consider granting an extension to the temporary
exemption as an alternative to making a final determination at that time as to whether Great Bay is an
"clectric utility" under the NRC definition.

On July 23,1997, the NRC stafT reaffirmed its finding that Great Bay is not an "clectric utility" and
issued a one-year exemption to Great Bay from the obligation of Great Bay to comply with the NRC's
regulations applicable to a non " electric utility" owner of an interest in a nuclear power plant. The exemption
gives Great Bay until the earlier of July 23,1998 or 90 days following the efTective date of any revisions to the
NRC's regulations regarding the NRC's definition of " electric utility" to obtain a surety bond or other
allowable decommissioning funding assurance mechanism for Great Bay's decommissioning liability related to
its ownership in Seabrook.

On September 10,1997, the NRC issued a proposed rule that would amend the definition of " electric
utility." The Company believes that Great Bay would not be an " electric utility" under the proposed new
defmite. The NRC requested and received comments in November 1997 on the proposed rule, but has not

'
3
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issued a final rule or amendments to the proposed rule. The Company cannot predict when or if a revision to
the NRC's defmition of " electric utility" will become effective or w hat form it could take.

On January 23,1998, Great Bay filed with the NRC a six-month status report on Great Bay's efTorts to
obtain a surety bond or other allowable decomrnissioning funding assurance mechanism. After an exhaustive
survey of the insurance market, Great Bay notified the NRC that no such surety or insurance product is
currently available on financially reasonable terms.

On January 30,1998, Great Bay filed a petition with the NRC seeking a determination by the NRC that
acceleration of decommissioning trust fund payments provides reasonable assurance of decommissioning
funding under NRC regulations, or, in the alternative, merits the issuance by the NRC of a permanent
exemption to Great Bay. In its petition, Great Bay proposes to contribute suflicient funds by the year 2015 to
allow sullicient monies to accumulate, with no further payments by Great Bay to the fund after 2015, to the
full estimated amount of Great Bay's decommissioning obligation by the time the current Seabrook operating
license expires in 2026.

The Company cannot predict whether Great Bay's accelerated funding proposal will be acceptable to the
NRC or whether the NRC will grant a permanent exemption to Great Bay. Failure to obtain relief may have a
material adverse etTect on Great Bay's business, financial condition, liquidity or results of operation.

Bankrupte) Procetdings and Reorganization

Great Bay filed a voluntary petition for reorganization under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy
Code (the " Bankruptcy Code") in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of New flampshire
(the " Bankruptcy Court") on February 28,1991. Great Bay conducted its business as a Debtor in Possession
until November 23,1994, at which time Great Bay's Amended Bankruptcy Plan became effective and Great
Bay emerged from Chapter 11. Financing for the Amended Bankruptcy Plan was provided by affiliates of
Omega Advisors, Inc. and by Elliot Associates, LP. (collectively, the " Investors"). At the time Great Bay
emerged from Chapter 11, the Investors purchased 4,800,000 shares of Great Bay's Common Stock for
$35,000,000.

Current Business

BayCorp's principal asset is its 100% equity interest in Great Bay. The business of Great Bay consists of
the management of its joint ownership interest in the Seabrook Project and the sale in the wholes * : power
market of its share of electricity produced by the Seabrook Project. Great Bay does not have operational
responsibility for the Seabrook Project. To date, Great Bay has entered into one long-term power contract for
approximately 10 MW of Great Bay's share of the Seabrook Project capacity. See "- Purchased Power
Agreements." Great Bay's business strategy is to seek purchasers, either in the short-term market or pursuant "

to medium or long term contracts, for its share of the Seabrook Project electricity output at prices in excess of
the prices currently available in the short-term market because sales at current short-term prices result in
revenues that are less than Great Bay's cash requirements for operations, maintenance and capital
expenditures.

As a result of Great Bay's reorganization into a holding company structure on January 24,1997, BayCorp
may engage in business activities, either directly or through subsidiaries other than Great Bay, that Great Bay
would be prohibited from pursuing due to its status as an EWG under PUllCA. BayCorp may in the future
enter into new businesses or acquire existing businesses, both in energy related fields and possibly in unrelated
fields.

Marketing -

Great Bay and PECO Energy Company ("PECO") entered into a Services Agreement as of Novem-'

; her 3,199T (the "PECO Services Agreement"), pursuant to which PECO was appointed as Great Bay's
exclusive agent to market and sell Great Bay's uncommitted portion of electricity generated by the Scabrook
Project. Proceeds from the sale of Great Ray's elec~icity together with reservation fees payable by PECO to

4
|
|
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Great Bay were shared between Great Bay and PECO in accordance with formulas set forth in the PECO
Services Agreement. In addition, PECO committed, under certain circumstances, to provide back-up power .

- during periods in which power was partially or totally unavailable from the Seabrook Project. The PECO
Services Agreement became effective on December 31,1995 and had initially provided for a term of tut
years. *

At the time that Great Bay entered into the PECO Services Agreement, Great Bay entered into a
Warrant' Purchase Agreement (the "PECO Warrant Purchase Agreement") pursuant to which, on Febru-
ary 15,1996. PECO purchased a warrant from Great Bay for $1,000.000. This warrant entitled PECO to ,

purchase 4.99% of the total shares outstanding, at that time, of the Company's Common Stock for !

approximately $4.1 million.

On September 30,1996, PECO exercised its warrant and purchased 417,800 shares. or 4.99% at that
time, of Great Bay's Common Stock at a price of $9.75 per share. As a result of the exercise of the uarrant by
PECO, the PECO Services Agreement was automatically extended through December 31,1998. In addition,
the parties agreed to extend the PECO Services Agreement for an additional year through December 31,
1999. Under the terms of the warrant, the $1,000,000 received for the purchase of the warrant was credited
towards the purchase price for the newly issued shares. Thus, Great Bay received an additional 53.1 million as
a result of PECO's exercise of the warrant.

On Fe' ruary 12,1998, Great Bay sent a letter to PECO informing PECO that Great Bay had terminated 1

PECO as Great Bay's exclusive marketing agent. On February 24,1998, Great Bay filed suit against PECO in
- the United States District Court for the District of New Hampshire seeking a declaratoryjudgment that Great
Bay properly terminated the PECO Services Agreement and seeking damages arising out of PECO's breach of j
the PECO Services Agreement. On March 10,1998, PECO filed a motion seeking to prevent Great Bay from i

terminating the PECO Services Agreement. At that time, PECO also filed counterclaims secking damages for
alleged breach of contract and alleged loss of good will and harm to PECO's reputation. See " Legal
Proceedings."

As of Man'h 1,1998, Great Bay assumed all marketing responsibilities from PECO. Great Bay expects
,

there will be w ' rruption in its ability to market its power in the New England region |

Great Bay currently sells most ofits power to utility companies located in the Northeast United States in
,

the short-term wholesale power market. Great Bay is currently not dependent on any single customer because i

many utilities and marketers are willing to buy Great Bay's share of electricity from the Seabrook Project at
substantially the same price. Prices in the short-term market are typically higher during the summer and
winter because the demand for electrical power is higher during these periods in the Northeast United States.
Sales of power to UNITIL Power Corporation ("UNITIL Power"), Northeast Utilities and Connecticut
Municipal Electric Energy Corp. each accounted for more than 10% of Great Bay's revenues during 1997. See j
" Power Purchase Agreements.' l

Purchased Power Agreements ,

l
Great Bay is party to a putchased power agreement, dated as of April I,1993 (the "UNITIL Purchased '

Power Agreement"), with UNITIL Power that provides for Great Bay to sell to UNITIL Power approxi-
mately 10 MW of power. The UNITil Purchased Power Agreement commenced on May 1,1993 and runs
through October 31,2010. The current price of power under the UNITIL Purchased Pewer Agreement is 5.18

,

cents per kilowatt-hour ("kWh"). In May 1998 and annually thereafter, the price is subject to increase in I

accordance.with a formula that provides for adjustments at less than the actual rate of inflation. UNITIL i

Power has an option to extend the UNITil Purchased Pow er Agreement for an additional 12 years until 2022.

The UNITIL Purchased Power Agreement is front-end loaded whereby UNIT.'L Power pays higher
prices, on an inflation adjusted basis, in the early years of the Agreement and lower prices in later years. The
amount of the excess paid by UNITIL Power in the early years of the UNITIL Purchased Power Agreement
is quantified in a " Balance Account" which incicases annually to $4.1 million in July 1998, then decreases
annually, reaching zero in July 2001. If the UNITIL Purchased Power Agreement terminates prior to its

5
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scheduled termination, and if at that time there is a positive amount in the Balance Account, Great Bay is
obligated to refund that amount to UNITIL Power.

To secure the obligations of Great Bay under the UNITtL Purchased Power Agreement, including the
obligation to repay UNITIL Power the amount in the Balance Account, the UNITIL Purchased Power
Agreement grants UNITIL Power a mortgage on Great Bayiinterest in the Seabrook Project. This mortgage
may be subordinated to first mortgage financing of up to a maximum amount of $80,000,000. The UNITIL
Purchased Power Agroement further provides that UNITIL Power's mortgage will rank pari passu with other
mortgages that may h :reafter be granted by Great Bay to other purchasers of power from Great Bay to secure
similar obligations, povided that (i) the maximum amount ofindebtedness secured by the first mortgage on
the Seabrook Interest may not exceed $80,000,000, and (ii) the combined total of all second mortgages on the

| Seabrook Interest may not exceed the sum of (a) 580,000,000 less the total amount of Great Bay's debt then ,

outstanding which is secured by a first mortgage plus (b) $57,000,000.

Great Bay is also party to a Purchased Power Agreement, dated November 9,1995 (the "Bangor
Purchased Power Agreement"), with Bangor Hydro-Electric Company ("Bangor liydro") pursuant to which
Bangor Ilydro agreed to purchase from Great Bay, subject to increase or reduction under certain circum-
stances,10 N1W of electricity during the months of January through h1 arch 1996 and for the months of
November 1996 through h1 arch 1997 and November 1997 through h1 arch 1998. Pursuant to the Bangor|

'

Purchased Power Agreement, Great Bay also granted to Bangor Hydro an extension option to purchase from

| Great Bay, under certain circumstances, up to 10 N1W of electricity for the months of November 1998
! through N1 arch 1999 and November 1999 through N1 arch 2000. This option must be exercised by October 22, i

1998.

| During the year ended December 31,1997, sales by Great Bay to Northeast Utilities, UNITIL Power
and Connectiert hiunicipal Electric Energy Corp. accounted for 50%,13% and 11%, respectively, of total
operating revenues. See Note 13 of Notes to the Financial Statements.

Competition

Great Bay sells its share of Seabrook electricity into the wholesale electricity market in the Northeast
'

United States. There are a large number of suppliers to this market and a surplus of capacity, resulting in
intense competition. A primary source of competition comes from traditional utilities, many of which presently
have excess capacity. In addition, non-utility wholesale generators of electricity, such as independent power
producers ("lPPs"), Qualifying Facilities ("QFs") and EWGs, as well as power marketers and brokers,
actively se" .lectricity in this market.

Great Bay raay face increased competition, primarily based on price, from all the foregoing sources in the
future. Great Bay believes that it will be able to compete elTectively in the wholesale electricity market

,

'

because of the current low cost of electricity generated by the Seabrook Project in comparison with existing |

alternative sources and the reduction of Great Bay's capital costs resulting from the implementaticn of the |

Chapter 11 reorganization plan.

NEPOOL
lGreat Bay is a party to the New England Power Pool ("NEPOOL") Agreement (the "NEPOOL
1

Agreement") and is a member of NEPOOL. NEPOOL is open to all investor-owned, municipal and '

cooperative electric utilities in New England that are connected to the New England power grid. Effective
November 13,1995, the NEPOOL Agreement was amended to permit broader membership and participation
in NEPOOL by power marketers an 1 other non-utilities that transact business in the bulk power market in 1

New England. The NEPOOL Agreement provides for coordinated planning of future faciHties as well as the
operation of nearly all of existing generating capacity in New England and of related tranu ission facilities as |

if they were one system. The NEPOOL Agreement imposes on its participants obligauons concerning
generating capacity reserves and the right to use major transmissmn lines. On occasions when one or more i

transmission lines are out of service, the quantity of power being produced by then operating generation plants I

may exceed the quantity of power that can be carr%d safely by the transmission system. In such instances one
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or more generation plants may be taken oft-line by NEPOOL. To date, the Seabrook Project has not been
taken otT-line in these instances. Great Bay believes that it is unlikely that the Seabrook Project would be
taken off-line in such instances because NEPOOL prefers to take olT-line non-nuclear plants, which are less

'j
complex and less diflicult to schedule than nuclear units.

The NEPOOL igreement also provides for central dispatch of the generating capacity of NEPOOL
members with the objective of achieving economical use of the region's facilities. Pursuant to the NEPOOL
Agreement, interchange sales (purchases from or sales to the pool by a NEPOOL member) are made at
prices approximately equal to the fuel cost for generation without contribution to the support of fixed charges,
if NEPOOL has the right to schedule delively of the power. On rare occasions, unscheduled power is
delivered, or " dumped", to the pool, for which no payment is made by NEPOOL. Great Bay does not expect
to " dump" power to NEPOOL. NEPOOL members also jointly schedule generation plant maintenance to
avoid capacity shortages in the NEPOOL area. The number of generation plants undergoing maintenance at
any time alTects the cost of replacement power in the market. Thus, Great Bay's operating revenues and costs
are alTected to some extent by the operations of other members.

On December 31, 1996, NEPOOL filed a restructuring plan with the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission ("FERC"), including amendments to the NEPOOL Agreement and an open access transmis-
sion taritT. The filing was intended not only to comply with the FERC's open access for tight pools as set forth
in FERC Order No. 888, but also to (1) transfer the region's transmission grid and generation operation to an
independent system operator, (2) provide for a competitive generatio.. narket through a combination of
bilateral trading and the formation of a regional power exchange and (s) qualify NEPOOL as a regional
transmission group. These changes are being implemented in stages that began in mid-1997.

Nuclear Power, Energy and Utility Regulation

The Seabrook Project and Great Bay, as part owner of a licensed nuclear facility. are subject to the broad
jurisdiction of the NRC, which is empowered to authorize the siting, constructio'n and operation of nuclear
reactors after consideration of public health and safety, environmental and antitrust matters. Graat Bay has
becc, and will be, afTected to the extent of its proportionate share by the cost of any such requirements made
applicable to Seabrook Unit 1.

Great Bay is also subject to the jurisdiction of the FERC under Parts 11 and 111 of the Federal Power Act
and, as a result,is required to file with FERC all contracts for the sale of electricity. FERC has the authority
to suspend the rates at which Great Bay proposes to sell power, to allow such rates to go into etTeet subject to
refund and to modify a proposed or existing rate if FERC determines that such rate is not "just and
reasonable." FERC's jurisdiction also includes, among other things, the sale, lease, merger, consolidation or
other disposition of facilities, interconnection of certain facilities, accounts, service and property records.

Because it is an EWG, Great Bay is not subject to the jurisdiction of the Securities and Exchange
Commission ("SEC") under PUHCA. In order to maintain its EWG status, Great Bay must continue to
engage exclusively in the business of owning and/or operating all or part of one or more " eligible facilities"
and to sell electricity only at wholesale (i.e. not to end asers) and activities in:idental thereto. An " eligible
facility" is a facility used for the generation of electric energy exclusively at wholesale or used for the
generation of electric energy and leased to one or more public utility companies. The term " facility" may
include a portion of a facility, in the case of Great Bay, its 12.1% joint ownuship interest in the Seabrook
Project comprises an " eligible facility "

Great Bay is subject to regulation by the NilPUC in many respects including the issuance of securities,<

l the issuance of debt, contracts with afliliates, forms of accounts, transfers of utility properties, mortgaging of
utility property and other matters. The NilPUC does not regulate rates charged for sales of electricity at

! w holesale. .

The NHPUC and the regulatory authorities with jurisdiction over utilities in New Hampshire and state
legislatures of several other states in which Great Bay sells electricity are considering or have implemented
initiatives relating to the deregulation of the electric utility industry. Simultaneously with the deregulation

7
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mitiatives occurring in each of the New England states, NEPOOL is restructuring to create and maintain

L open, non-discriminatory, competitive, unbundled markets for energy, capacity, and ancillary services.
| NEPOOL's restructuring is designed to function eHiciently in a changing electric power industry and to permit

regional transmission at rates that do not vary with distance. All of the deregulation initiatives open electricity|

markets to competition in the afTected states. While Great Bay believes it is a low-cost producer of electricity
and will benefit from the deregulation of the electric industry, it is not possible to predict the impact of these1

various initiatives on Great Bay.
!

|
Nuclear Power issues

|

| Nuclear units in the United States have been subject to widespread criticism and opposition, which has

| led to construction delays, cost overruns, licensing delays and other difliculties Various groups have sought to
prohibit the completion and operation of nuclear units and the disposal of nuclear waste by litigation,

| legislation and participation in administrative proceedings. The Seabrook Project was the subject of significant
public controversy during its construction and licensing and remains controversial. An increase in public

| concerns regarding the Seabrook Project or nuclear power in general could adversely afTect the operating
! license of Seabrook Unit 1. While the Company cannot predict the ultimate etreet of such controversy, it is

possible that it could result in a premature shutdown of the unit.

In the event of a permanent shutdown of any unit, NRC regulations require that the unit be completely
decontaminated of any residual radioactivity. While the owners of the Seabrook Project are accumulating a

,

| trust fund to pay decommissioning costs, if these costs exceed the amount of the trust fund, the owners,
including Great Bay, will be liable for the excess.

Nuclear Related Insurance

! In accordance with the Price Anderson Act, the limit of liability for a nuclear-related accident is
j approsimately $8.9 billion, efTective November 18, 1994. The primary layer of insurance for this liability is
| $200 million of coserage provided by the commercial insurance market. The secondary coverage is

approximately $8.3 billion, based on the approximately 110 currently licensed reactors in the United States.
The secondary layer is based on a retrospective premium assessment of $75.5 million per nuclear accident per
licensed reactor, payable at a rate not exceeding $10 million per year per reactor. In addition, the retrospective
premium is subject to inflation based indexing at five-year mtervals and,if the sum of all public liability claims
and legal costs arising from any nuclear accident exceeds the maximum amount of financial protection
available, then each licensee can be assessed an additional 5% ($3.965 million) of the maximum retrospective
assessment. With respect to the Seabrook Project, Great Bay would be obligated to pay its ownership share of
any assessment resulting from a nuclear incident at any United States nuclear generating facility. Great Bay
estimates its maximum liability per nuclear accident currently would be an aggregate amount of approxi-
mately $9.59 million per accident, with a maximum annual assessment of about $1.21 million per incident, per
year.

In addition to the insurance required by the Price Anderson Act, the NRC regulations require licensees,
including the Seabrook Project, to carry all risk nuclear property damage insurance in the amount of at least
$1.06 billion, which amount must be dedicated,in the event of an accident at the reactor, to the stabilization

I and decontamination of the reactor to prevent significant risk to the public health and safety.

| Great Bay also independently purchases business interruption insurance from Nuclear Electric Insurance
'

Limited ("NEIL"). The current policy is in effect from September 15,1997 until September 15,1998 and
provides for the payment of a fixed weekly loss amount of $520,000 in the event of an outage at the Seabrook
Project of more than 23 weeks resulting from the property damage occurring from a " sudden fortuitous event,

|

I which happens by chance,is unexpected and unforeseeable." The maximum amount payable to Great Bay is
$70.3 million. Under the terms of the policy, Great Bay is subject to a potential retrospective premium
adjustment of up to approximately $640,000 should NEIL's board of directors deem that additional funds are
necessary to preserve the financial integrity of NEIL. Since NEIL was founded in 1980, there has been no
retrospective premium adjustment; however, there can be no assurance that NEIL will not make retrospective,

| 8
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adjustments in the future. The liability for this retrospective premium adjustment ceases six years after the
end of the policy unless prior demand has been made.

Nuclear Fuel

The Seabrook Project's joint owners have made, or expect to make, various arrangements for the
acquisition of uranium concentrate, the conversion, enrichment, fabrication and utilization of nuclear fuel and
the disposition of that fuel after use. Many of these arrangements are pursuant to multi-year contracts with
concentrate and senice providers. Based on the Seabrook Project's existing contractual arrangements, Great
Bay believes that the Seabrook Project has available, or under supply contracts, suHicient nuclear fuel for
operations through approximately 2000. The Seabrook plant management has scheduled the next refueling'
outage for March 1999. Uranium concentrate and conversion, enrichment and fabrication services currently
are available form a variety of sources. The cost of such concentrate and such services varies based upon
market forces.

Nuclear Waste Disposal

Costs associated with nuclear plant operations include amounts for disposal of nuclear wastes, including
spent fuel, as well as for the ultimate decommissioning of the plants. Under the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of
1982 (the "NWPA"), the United States Department of Energy (the " DOE") is required (subject to various
contingencies) to design, license, construct and operate a permanent repository for high level radioactive4

wastes and spent nuclear fuel and establish prescribed fees for the disposal of such waste and fuel. The NWPA
specifies that the DOE provide for the disposal of such waste and spent nuclear fuel starting in January 1998.

The owners of the Seaorook Project, through its managing agent NAESCO, have entered into contracts
with the DOE for disposal of spent nuclear fuelin accordance with the NWPA. In return for payment of the
prescribed fees, the federal government was required to take title to and dispose of the Seabrook Project's high
level wastes and spent nuclear fuel beginning no later than January 1998. lionever, the DOE has announced
that its first high level waste reposi;ory will not be in operation earlier than 2010, notwithstanding the DOE's
statutory and contractual responsibility to begin disposal of high-level radioactive waste and spent fuel,
beginning not later than January 31,1998.

On November 14,1997 the U.S. District Court of Appeals ruled that the Department of Energy has an
obligation to begin disposing of spent nuclear fuel from power plants by January 31,1998. Since the DOE was
unable to dispose of spent fuel by the due date set by Congress in the NWPA, the L)OE breached its
obligations as of that date. The DOE filed a Petition for Reconsideration of the Appeals Court ruling and
indicated costs for relief or damages would come from a nuclear waste fund supported by owners of nuclear
plants. These ou ners, including Great Bay, oppose the DOE's position with respect to using funds provided by
nuclear owners to cover damages arising from the DOE's breach of its obligations.

Until the federal government begins receiving nuclear waste materials in accordance with the NWPA,
operating nuclear generating units such as the Seabrook Project will need to retain high level wastes and spent
fuel on-site or make other provisions for their storage. The Seabrook Project increased its on-site storage
capacity for Low Level Waste ("LLW") in 1996 and such capacity is expected to be sullicient to meet the
Project's storage requirements through 2006. In addition, the Managing Agent of the Seabrook Project has
advised Great Bay that the Seabrook Project has adequate on-site storage capacity for high-level wastes until

.approximately 2010.

Disposal costs for LLWs that result from normal operation of nuclear generating units have increased
significantly in recent years and may continue to rise. Cost increases are a function of increased packaging and
transportation costs and higher fees and surcharges charged by the disposal facilities Pursuant to the Low-
Level Radioactive Waste Policy Act of 1980, each state is responsible for providing disposal facilities for LL\"
generated within the state and was authorized tojoin with other states into regional compacts to jointly fulfill
their responsibilities.110 wever, pursuant to the Low-Level Radioactive Waste Policy Amendments Act of
1985, each state in which a currently operating disposal facility is located (South Carolina, Nevada and
Washington) is allowed to impose volume limits and a surcharge on shipments of LLW from states that are

9
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not members of the compact in the region in which the facility is located. On June 19,1992,-the United States
Supreme Court issued a decision upholding certain parts of the Low-Level Radioactive Waste Policy

; Amendments Act of 1985, but invalidating a key provision of that law requiring each state to take title to
' LLW generated within that state if the state fails to meet federally mandated deadlines for siting LLW
disposal facilities. The decision has resulted in uncertainty about states' continuing roles in siting LLW
disposal facilities and may result in increased LLW disposal costs and the need for longer interim LLW
storage before a permanent solution is developed.

In April 1995, a privately owned facility in Utah was approved as a disposal facility for certain types of
. LLW. Additionally, the Barnwell, South Carolina disposal facility was reopened in July 1995 to all states
'except North Carolina as a result oflegislation passed by the South Carolina legislature. The Seabrook Project
began shipping certain LLW to the Utah facility in December 1995. All LLW generated by the Scabrook
Project that exceeds the maximum radioactivity level of LLW accepted by the Utah facility is currently stored
on-site at the Seabrook facility.

Decommissioning

NRC licensing requirements and restrictions are also applicable to the decommissioning of nuclear
generating units at the end of their service lives, and the NRC has adopted comprehensive regulations
concerning decommissioning planning, timing, funding and environmental review. Any changes in NRC
requirements or technology can increase estimated decommissioning costs.

Great Bay is responsible for_its pro rata share of the decommissioning and cancellation costs for
. Seabrook. Great Bay pays its share of decommissioning costs on a monthly basis. The decommissioning
funding schedule is determined by the New llampshi.e Nuclear L)ecommissioning Financing Committee (the
"NDFC"), The NDFC reviews the decommissioning funding schedule for the Seabrook Project at least
annually and, for good cause, may increase or decrease the amount of the funds or alter the funding schedule.
The review of the current estimate and funding schedule by the NDFC is scheduled to commence in April
1998. Although the owners of the Seabrook Project, including Great Bay, are accumulating funds in an
external trust to defray decommissioning costs, these costs cou'd substantially exceed the value of the trust
fund, and the owners, including Great Bay, would remain liable for the excess. Great Bay may be required to
change the mechanism by which it funds its share of the Seabrook Project decommissioning costs due to the
recent NRC review of Great Bay's status as an electric utility (see "- Recent Developments"). Based on the
currently approved funding schedule, Great Bay's decommissioning payments will be approximately $1.2
million in 1998 and escalate at 4% per year each year thereafter through 2026.

The current estimated cost to decommission the Seabrook Project, based on a study performed in 1996
for the lead owner of the Seabrook Project, is approximately $473 million in 1997 dollars and $2.2 hillion in

i 2026 dollars, assuming a remaining 28 year life for the facility and a future cost escalation rate of 5.0% Based
on this estimate, the present value of Great Bay's share of this liability as of December 31,1997 was
approximately $55.9 million.

On November 15, 1992, Great Bay's former parent, EUA, and certain other parties entered into a
settlement agreement. Under the settlement agreement, EUA guaranteed an amount not to exceed $10
million of Great Bay's future decommissioning costs of Seabrook Unit 1 in the event that Great Bay is unable
to pay its share of such decommissioning costs.

Emironmental Regulation

The Seabrook Project, like other electric generating stations, is subject to standards administered by
l federal, state and local authorities with respect to the siting of facilities and associated environmental factors.
| The United States Environmental Protection Agency (the " EPA"), and certain state and local authorities,

have jurisdiction over releases of pollutants, contaminants and hazardous substances into the environment and
j have broad authority in connection therewith, including the ability to require installation of pollution control

devices and remedial actions. The NRC has promulgated a variety of standards to protect the public from'

radiological pollution caused by the normal operation of nuclear generating facilities.:

t
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The EPA issued a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (" NPDES") permit, valid for a
period of five years, to NAESCO on October 30,1993 authorizing discharges from Seabrook Station into the
Atlantic Ocean and the Browns River in accordance with limitations, monitoring requirements and conditions I

specified in the permit. Seabrook Station's current five-year NPDES permit expires October 30,1998. The
Seabrook Project has assembled a multi-disciplined project team' led by an Environmental Compliance ,

Supervisor to develop the renewal application, which must be filed by April 30,1998. '

On August 31,1994, the New llampshire Department of Environmental Services issued to NAESCO
| permits to operate two auxiliary boilers and two emergency diesel generators in accordance with New

Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated Chapter 125-C. These permits, which were efTective until August 31,
1997, prescribe limits for the emission of air pollutants into the ambient air as well as record keeping and other
reporting criteria. NAESCO filed an application on July 16,1996 for permits under Title V of the Clean Air
Act. Upon the expiration of the State of New Ilampshire permits, the conditions authorized by those permits
remain in effect until the Title V permits are granted. NAESCO can not estimate when the Title V permits
will be granted. Because the liabilities of the Participants under the JOA are several and not joint,in the event
that NA ESCO violates the emissions limits contained in its permits, if at all, Great Bay is liable for its pro rata j

share of any costs and liabilities assessed for the emissions violations. l

in some environmental areas, the NRC and the EPA have overlapping jurisdiction. Thus, NRC
regulations are subject to a!! conditions imposed by the EPA and a variety of federal environmental statutes, j;

including obtaining permits for the discharge of pollutants (including heat, which is discharged by the |

'

, Seabrook Project) into the nation's navigable waters. In addition, the EPA has established standards, and is in
! the process of reviewing existing standards, for certain toxic air pollutants, including radionuclides, under the

United States Clean Air Act which apply to NRC-licensed facilities. The effective date for the new EPA
radionuclide standard has been stayed as applied to nuclear generating units. Environmental regulation of the
Seabrook Project may result in material increases in capital and operating costs, delays or cancellation of
construction of planned improvements, or modification or termination of operation of existing facilities.

| Management believes that Great Bay is in compliance in all meterial respects with applicable EPA, NRC and

| other regulations relating to pollution caused by nuclear generating facilities.
[

Energy Policy Act

The Energy Policy Act of 1992 addresses many aspects of national energy policy and includes important
changes for electric utilities and registered holding companies. For example, the Energy Policy Act grants
FERC new authority to mandate transmission access for QFs, EWGs and traditional utilities. It is not possible

' to predict the impact which the Energy Policy Act and the rules and regulations that will be promulgated by
various regulatory agencies pursuant to the Energy Polic) Act will have on the Company. It is also not possible

,

to predict the timing or content of future entgy policy legislation and the significance of such legislation to the
Company. Various issues not addressed by the Energy Policy Act, including regional planning and transmis-
sion arrangements, could be addressed in future legislation.

Emplo3ees and Management

|
Ba3 Corp has five employees, including its President and Chief Executise Ollicer, John A. Tillinghast, andi

| its Ch:ef Operating Officer, Frank W. Getman Jr. See " Executive Ollicers." BayCorp's wholly-owned
| subsidiary, Great Bay, has one employee.

On January 24, 1997, a Management and Administrative Services Agreement (the " Services Agree-
nent") was signed between BayCorp and Great Bay, pursuant to which BayCorp provides Great Bay a full
range of management services, including general management and administration, accounting and bookkeep-
ing, budgeting and regulatory compliance. Under the Service Agreement Great Bay pays BayCorp a monthly
fee of $156,000 for such services. The Services Agreement has a one-year term and provides for automatic'

one-year renewals
i
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| tem 2. Propertles.

BayCorp's principal asset is its equity interest in Great Bay, in turn, Great Bay's principal awet is its
12.1% joint ownership interest in the Seabrook Project. The Seabrook Project is a nuclear-fueled. steam
electricity, generating plant located in Seabrook, New Hampshire, which was planned to have two Westing-
house pressurized water reactors, Seabrook Unit I and Seabrook Unit 2 (each with a rated capacity of 1,150
megawatts), utilizing ocean water for condenser coiling purposes. Seabrook Unit i entered commercial service
on August 19,1990. Seabrook Unit 2 has been canceled. See " Business -The Seabrook Project "

item 3. Lega! Proceedings.

For each of the tax years 1994,1995,1996 and 1997, Great Bay filed property tax abatement applications
with the town of Seabrook and two other New llampshire towns in which the Seabrook Project is located.
Great Bay paid the 1994,1995 and half of the 1996 property taxes billed by the Towns of Seabrook. Hampton
and Ilampton Falls, New llampshire (collectively, the " Towns") but withheld pay ment of the second half of
the 1996 property taxes billed by the Towns, based on Great Bay's position that the portion of 1996 property
taxes paid to the Towns exceeded the amount of the total 1996 property taxes appropriately payable by Great

i Bay to the Towns. Great Bay also withheld the first half of its 1997 property taxes to the Towns. The
abatement request for tax years 1994,1995 and 1996 were denied. Great Bay filed appeals for each of those
3 ears with the New Hampshire Board of Tax and Land Appeals. The appeals are currently pending and a
hearing on the first phase of these appeals is scheduled for May 12,1998. ,

In December 1996, eight of the Joint Owners of the Seabrook Project (the " Demanding Joint Owners")
served a demand on Great Bay for arbitration of a dispute between Great Bay and the Demanding Joint

;

| Owners concerning the allocation among the joint ow ners of real property taxes assessed by the Tow ns against
the Seabrook Project. Great Bay claimed that the Joint Owners Agreement does not provide for allocation of

'

! real estate tax liabilities in proportion to each joint owner's ownership interest in the Seabrook Project. The
Demanding Joint Owners claimed that real estate taxes should be allocated in accordance with each
Participant's ownership interest.

In September 1997, the arbitrator issued a decision requiring Great Bay to pay its share of all property

( taxes assessed upon the Seabrook Project in a single tax bill in accordance with Great Bay's percentage

| ownership in the Seabrook Project. Accordingly,in October 1997, Great Bay paid under protest $3.168,903 for

| property taxes and accrued interest for the second half of 1996 and the first half of 1997 to the Towns. In
December 1997, Great Bay paid $1,266,194 for property taxes due to the Towns for the second half of 1997.

The arbitrator's decision does not atTeet the tax abatement litigation pending against the Towns for tax
years 1994 through 1997, nor does it alTect Great Bay's ability to assert that it is entitled to a separate tax bill
and assessment from the Towns. In addition, on February 28.1997 and February 27,1998, NAESCO, the
current managing agent for the Seabrook Project, purported to file tax abatement applications on behalf of all
the .loint Owners for the 1996 and 1997 tax years, respectively.

On February 12,1998, Great Bay sent a letter to PECO informing PECO that Great Bay intended to
terminate PECO as Great Bais exclusive marketing agent. On February 24,1998, Great Bay liled suit against
PECO in the United States District Court for the District of New Hampshire seeking a declaratory judgment
that Great Bay properly terminated the PECO Services Agreement and seeking damages arising out of
PECO's breach of the PECO Services Agreement. In its complaint, Great llay alleges that (i) PLCO has
entered into a number of wholesale power agreements in its own name and for its ou n benefit without bringing
these opportunities to Great Bay's attention or submitting bids on behalf of Great Bay and (ii) PECO failed to
offer Great llay's power on a firm basis to customers as required under the PECO Services Agreement. On
February 27, 1998, Great Bay sent a letter to PECO notifying PECO that the Services Agreement was
terminated.

On March 10,1998. PECO filed a motion in the United States District Court for the District of New
llampshire for a preliminary injunction to prevent Great Bay from terminating the PECO Services
Agreement. At that time, PECO also filed counterclaims seeking damages in an amount in excess of
$5.000,000 for alleged breach of contract, alleged loss of goodwill and alleged harm to PECO's reputation.
PECO's counterclaim contained seven counts: breach of contract / wrongful termination. breach of exclusivity
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promise, breach of the covenant of good faith and fair dealing, unjust enrichment, defamation, unfair trade
practices and an action for declaratory judgment. Great Bay believes that PECO's motion and counterclaims '|
are without merit. Great Bay intends to vigorously pursue its claims against PECO. On March 19,1998 a
hearing was held on PECO's motion for a preliminary injunction. The judge took the matter under advisement
and is expected to issue a decision shortly.

|

| tem 4. Submission of Alatters to a Vote of Security lloiders. |
1

- Not Applicable. 1

i

Executive 0[ficers of the Registrant - E

The executive oflicers of BayCorp are: |
Name Age Position

John A. Tillinghast 70 Chief Executive Ollicer, President, Treasurer........ . . ... , ,. ..

and Chairman of the Board of Directors
Frank' .W. Getman Jr. . . . . .34 Chief Operating Officer and Secretary - j.

.. ... ... ...

John A. Tillinghast has served as President. Treasurer and the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the j
Company and its predecessor since November 1994 and Chief Executive Ollicer since April 1995. Since 1987, |

Mr. Tillinghast has served as President and the sole stockholder of Tillinghast Technology Interests, Inc., a I

private consulting firm. From 1986 to 1993, Mr. Tillinghast served as Chairman of the Energy Engineering
Board of the National Academy of Sciences. He holds an M.S. in Mechanical Engineering form Columbia
University. I

Frank W. German Jr. has served as Chief Operating Officer of the Company and its predecessor since :

September 17,1996 'and Vice President, Secretary and General Counsel of Great Bay since August 1,1995. !

From September 1991 to August 1995, Mr. Getman was an attorney with the law firm of Hale and Dort LLP, i

Boston, Massachusetts. Mr. Getman. holds J.D. and M.B.A. degrees from Boston College and a B.A. in .

IPolitical Science from Tufts University.

'
PART 11

- Item 5. Afarketfor Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Starters.
,

Following are the reported high and low sales prices of BayCorp Common Stock ("MWH") on the
American Stock Exchange ("ASE") as reported in the Wall Street Journal daily as traded, for each quarter -

during 1997 that BayCorp Common Stock traded on the ASE and for Great Bay Common Stock ("GBPW")
,

on the Nasdaq National Market ("NNM") as reported in the Wall Street Journal daily as traded, for each -

_ quarter during 1996 that the Great Bay Common Stock traded on the NNM:

liigh in

1996

First Quarter 8% 6% ... . . . ... . .. .... .

^Second Quarter . , . . . . 8% 6%... .... .. . .

Third Quarter 10% 6%.. .. .... ..... . ..... .. . ..

Fourth Quarter . . 10 7%.. . .. ..

1997.

First Quarter . .. . 8% 7%... . . .. . .

Second Quarter . . . . . . 8 7 .... .... . . .. ... ..

Thiid Quarter 8% 7%. . , . ... . . . .

Fourth Quarter 7% 6%.. . . . ... . .. ..

As of March 9,1998, the Company had 33 holders of record of its Common Stock. The Company,

believes that as of March 9,1998 the Company had approximately 420 beneficial holders of its Common
Stock. The number of beneficial owners substantially exceeds the number of recordholders because many of

,

:the Company's stockholders hold their shares in street names..

:
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Neither the Company nor Great Bay has ever paid cash dividends on its common stock. BayCorp
currently expects that it will retain all of its future earnings and does not anticipate paying a dividend in the
foreseeable future.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

Selected Financial Data

The following table sets forth selected financial data and other operating information of BayCorp, as
successor to Great Bay. The selected financial data presented below for periods subsequent to November 23,
1994 give effect to the consummation of Great Bay's Fifth Amended Plan of Reorganization dated
February 11,1994, as amended by a First Amendment dated September 9,1994 (the " Amended Bankruptcy
Plan") of the predecessor of Great Bay and to the adoption of fresh start reporting by Great Bay as of that ;

date in accordance with the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants' Statement of Position 90-7
Financial Reportir.g by Entities in Reorganization under the Bankruptcy Code. Accordingly, periods prior to

- November 23, 1994 have been designated " Predecessor Company" or the " Predecessor" and periods
subsequent to November 23, 1994 have been designated " Reorganized Company" or the " Company."
Selected balance sheet and statement of income (loss) data of the Predecessor Company periods are not
comparable to those of the Reorganized Company periods and a line has been drawn in the tables to separate
the Predecessor financial data from the Company financial data.

The following data presents (i) selected financial data of the Reorganized Company as ef and for the |

years ended December 31,1997, December 31,1996, December 31,1995, as of December 31,1994 and for
the period from November 24,1994 to December 31,1994 and (ii) selected financial data of the Predecessor
company for the period from January 1,1994 to November 23, 1994 and as of and for the year ended
December 31,1993. The information below should be read in conjunction with the " Management's Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and the Company's financial statements,
including the notes thereto, contained elsewhere in this Report.

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
(Dollars in Thousands)

Reorganized Company Predecessor Compr.ny

for the Year Ended Nmember 24 to January I to Year Ended
,

December 31. December 31, No, ember 23, December 31,

1997 19 % 1995 1994 1994 1993
e

income Statement Data: 4

Operating Revenues $ 26,642 $ 30,324 $ 24,524 $ 3,129 $ 13,989 $ 24,620..

Fuel, Oneration &
M- mance 29,187 24,885 24,899 2,409 21,762 22,921

Net in.ome (Loss) (11,215) 4,100 (6,059) 182 131,385 (9.433)

For the years et.ded December 31,

1997 1996 1995 1994 1993

Balance Sheet Data:
Cash & Cash Equivalents 19,092 28,775 16,469 22,217 138.

Working Capital 23,079 30,552 20,516 27,169 (289,585). .

Total Assets . . . 140,158 152,418 138,771 145,666 324,590..

Decommissioning Liability. 55.846 53,215 50,899 48,530 -

Capitalization:
;

Common Equity 78,139 89,625 82,233 88,292 (139,783)
'

. .

Cumulative Convertible i
Preft tred Stock . . . . - - - - 63,090..

Total Capitalization 78,139 89,625 82,233 88,292 (76,693).
,

|
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item 7. Afanagement's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Emergence from Chapter 11

On February 28,1991, Great Bay filed a voluntary petition for reorganization under Chapter 11 of the
Bankruptcy Code. On November 23,1994 (the " Confirmation Date"), a formal confirmation order by the
Bankruptcy Court with respect to Great Bay's Amended Bankruptcy Plan became effective. At that time,
Great Bay emerged from bankruptcy. As a result of the Chapter 1i proceeding and in accordance with the
provisions of the Amended Bankruptcy Plan, the capital structure of Great Bay was completely changed. In
particular, as part of its Chapter 11 proceeding, Great Bay discharged all of its pre-petition debt, which
consisted primarily of the approximately $280 million principal amount of outstanding Notes and unpaid
accrued interest on the Notes of approximately $14 million, and raised gross proceeds of $35 million in the
Amended Bankruptcy Plan. See " Business - Bankruptcy Proceeding and Reorganization." Thus, as a result,
Great Bay's net worth increased significantly and Great Bay was relieved of the obligation to make principal
and interest payments on the Notes.

The following discussion focuses solely on operating revenues and operating expenses uhich are presented
in a substantially consistent manner for all of the periods presented. As a result of the Chapter 11 proceeding
and subsequent effectiveness of the amended Bankruptcy Plan on November 23,1994, the 1994 Statement of
Income represents separately the results of operations of Great Bay's predecessor company prior to
November 23,1994 from the results of operations of Great Bay after that date.

On the Confirmation Date, Great Bay adopted " Fresh Start" accounting, which resulted in adjustments
to the assets and liabilities of Great Bay to their estimated fair values as of the Confirmation Date and includes
the net proceeds of the equity financing for the Amended Bankruptcy Plan, and eliminated liabilities
discharged under the Amended Bankruptcy Plan.

Oier iew

As a result of the corporate restructuring that occurred in January 1997, BayCorp's principal asset is its
100% equity interest in Great Bay. Great Bay is a public utility whose principal interest is a 12.1% joint
ownership interest in the Seabrook Nuclear Power Project in Seabrook, New flampshire. Unless the context
requires otherwise, references to BayCorp for events and time periods before January 1997 reflect treatment of
BayCorp as successor to Great Bay.

BayCorp reported a net loss for the year ended December 31,1997, reported net income for the year
ended December 31,1996 and reported a net loss for the year ended December 31,1995. The 1997 net loss
was primarily due to scheduled and unscheduled outages at the Seabrook Project that occurred during the
year. The 1996 net income was primarily due to a gain of $7,036,792 from the sale of unused steam generators
from Seabrook Unit 2. The net loss in 1995 was primarily due to sales of Great Bay's share of electricity from
the Seabrook Project in the short-term market at prices resulting in revenues substantially below expenses.

The Seabrook Project from time to time experiences both scheduled and unscheduled outages. Great Bay
incurs losses during outage periods due to the loss of all operating revenues and additional costs associated
with the outages as well as continuing operating and maintenance expenses and depreciation. Unscheduled
outages or operation of the unit at reduced capacity can cecur due to the automatic operation of safety systems
following the detection of a malfunction. In addition,it is possible for the unit to be shut down or operated at
reduced capacity based on the results of scheduled and unscheduled insp etions and routine surveillance by
Seabrook Project personnel. It is not possible for Great Bay to predict the frequency or duration of any future
unscheduled outages; however, it is likely that such unscheduled outages will occur. The Managing Agent of
the Seabrook Project has scheduled the next refueling outage for March 1999. Refueling outages are
scheduled generally every 18 to 24 months depending upon the Seabrook Project capacity factor and the rate
at which the nuclear fuel is consumed.

15
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Results of Operations

Operating Revenues

BayCorp's operating revenues for 1997 decreased by approximately $3.7 million, or 12.1%, to $26,642,000
for 1997 as compared with $30,324,000 for 1996. This decrease was primarily due to the scheduled and
unscheduled outages at the Seabrook Project during 1997. During 1997, the capacity factor at the Seabrook
Project was 78.3% of the rated capacity as compared to a capacity factor of 96.5% for 1996. Operating
revenues and capacity factor were adversely impacted in 1997 by the scheduled refueling outage at the
Seabrook Project that began on May 10,1997, lasting 50 days, and by the unscheduled outage that began on
December 5,1997, lasting 41 days. In contrast, there was only a brief unscheduled outage in January and
February of 1996.

Sales of electricity decreased by approximately 19.3% to 964,038,400 kilowatt-hours in 1997 as compared
to 1.194,391,000 kilowatt-hours in 1996. Operating revenues were favorably atTected in 1997 by an increase in
the sales price per kWh. During 1997 the sales price per kWh (determined by dividing total sales revenue by
the total number of kWhs sold in the applicable period) increased 9.1% to 2.76 cents per kWh as compared
with 2.53 cents per kWh in 1996. Great Bay's cost of power (determined by dividing total operating expenses
by Great Bay's 12.1% share of the power produced by the Seabrook Project during the applicable period)
increased 40.8% to 3.83 cents per kWh in 1997 as compared to 2.72 cents per kWh in 1996. This increase was
primarily the result of the lower capacity factor at the Seabrook Project due to the scheduled and unscheduled
outages in 1997 and the associated costs of these outages. Scheduled and unscheduled outage time increases
Great Bay's cost of power because Seabrook costs are spread over fewer kWhs.

Great Bay's operating revenues for 1996 increased by approximately $5.8 million, or 23.7%, to
$30,324.000 as compare I with $24,524,000 for 1995. This increase was primarily due to higher availability and
production at the Seabrook Project due to fewer unscheduled and scheduled outages in 1996 compared to
1995. During 1996, the capacity factor at the Seabrook Project was 96.5% of the rated capacity versus a
capacity factor of 83.2% for 1995. Operating revenue and capacity factor were negatively afTected in 1995 by
the scheduled refueling outage at the Seabrook Project that occurred during parts of November and
December 1995.

Sales of electricity increased by approximately 17.5% to 1,194,391,000 kilowatt-hours in 1996 as
compared to 1,016,727,000 kilowatt-hours in 1995. Operating revenues were also favorably alTected in 1996 by
an increase in the sales price per kWh. During 1996 the sales price per kWh increased 5% to 2.53 cents per
kWh as compared with 2.41 cents per kWh in 1995. Great Bay's cost of power decreased 14.5% to 2.72 cents
per kWh in 1996 as compared to 3.18 cents per kWh in 1995. This decrease was primarily the result of the
higher capacity factor at the Seabrook Project in 1996 as compared to 1995.

E>penses

BayCorp's total operating expenses (excluding depreciation and all taxes) for 1997 increased $4.3
million, or 17.3%,in comparison with 1996. This increase was primarily the result of the costs associated with
the scheduled refueling outage in 1997 that lasted 50 days and the unscheduled outage that began on i

December 5,1997 and lasted 41 days. There was a slight increase in depreciation and amortization (1.7%) and I
a slight decrease in taxes other than income (1%), from 1996 to 1997.

Other income decreased i15%, or $7.3 million,in 1997 as compared to 1996. This decrease was primarily
attributable to a $7.0 million gain on the sale in July 1996 of four unused steam generators from Seabrook
Unit 2. Great Bay had previously written oft its investment in Seabrook Unit 2. There were no material sales
of Unit 2 assets in 1997. Decommissioning cost accretion increased $402,000, to $2,663,000 in 1997 as
compared to $2,261,000 in 1996, primarily due to the revised decommissioning funding schedule for the
Seabrook Project approved by the New ilampshire Nuclear Decommissioning Financing Committee on
October 30,1996. The new study increased the present value of total decommissioning costs as of January 1,
1997 and increased the cost escalation rate from 4.25% to 5% This accretion is a non-cash charge that reflects
Great Bay's liability related to the closure and decommissioning of the Seabrook Project in current year
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dollars over the licensing period during which the Seabrook Project is licensed to operate. This increase in |
decommissioning cost accretion also contributed to the decrease in Other Income in 1997 in comparison with 1

1996. Decommissioning trust fund income increased $142,000, or 43.3%, to $470.000 in 1997 as compared to
$328,000 in 1996. The increase in interest earned on the decommissioning trust fund reflected the higher 1997
fund balance as Great Bay continued to make contributions to the decommissioning trust fund.

There was a small overall increase in total operating expenses of $182,000, or 0.6% from $32,381,000 in
1995 to $32,563,000 in 1996 reflecting increases in depreciation and amortization of 3.3% taxes of 2% and
administrative and general expenses of 5.1%

Other income increased 263% or $4.6 million, during 1996 as compared to 1995, reflecting a $7.0 million
gain on sale of assets in July of 1996 as mentioned above. There were no material sales of Unit 2 assets in
1995. This increase in other income was ofTset in part by Great Bay's recognition in 1996 of its share of the
Seabrook Project's decommissioning liability. During 1996, Great Bay began to accrete it share of the
Seabrook Project's decommissioning liability in 19% dollars rather than 1995 dollars. In 1995 there was no
expense for Great Bay's share of the Seabrook Project's decommissioning liability because the entire amount
of Great Bay's share of the Seabrook Project's decommissioning liability was reflected as a liability on Great
Bay's balance sheet under fresh start accounting principles. This accretion is a non-cash charge and recognizes
Great Bay's liability related to the closure and decommissioning of the Seabrook Project in current year
dollars over the licensing period during which the Seabrook Project is licensed to operate. |

Net Operating Loues

For federal income tax purposes, as of December 31,1997, the Company hed net operating loss carry l

forwards ("NOLs") of approximately $196 million, which are scheduled to expire between 2005 and 2012.
Because the Company has experienced one or more ownership changes, within the meaning of Section 382 of
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, an annual limitation is imposed on the ability of the
Company to use $136 million of these carryforwards. The Company's best estimate at this time is that the
annuallirnitation on the use of $136 million of the Company's NOLs is approximately $5.5 million per year.
Any unused portion of the $5.5 million annual limitation applicable to the Company's restricted NOL's is
available for use in future years until such NOL's are scheduled to expire. The Company's other $60 million of
NOLs are not currently subject to such limitations.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Great Bay is required under the JOA to pay its share of Seabrook Unit I and Seabrook Unit 2 expenses,
including, without limitation, operation and maintenance expenses, construction and nuclear fuel expenditures
and decommissioning costs, regardless of the level of Seabrook Unit l's operations. Seabrook Project expenses
to preserve and protect Unit 2 assets are approximately $500,000 per year, of which Great Bay's share is
approximately $62,000 per year.

Great Bay currently sells most of its power in the Northeast United States short-term uholesale power
market. The cash generated from electricity sales by Great Bay is and has been less than the Company's
ongoing cash requirements. The Company expects that it will continue to incur cash deficits until the prices at
which it is able to sell its share of the Seabrook Project electricity increase, w hich may be a number of years, if
ever. Great Bay intends to cover such deficits with its cash and short-term investments which totaled
approximately $19.1 million at December 31,1997. Ilowever, if the Seabrook Project operates at a capacity
factor below historical levels, or if expenses associated with the ownership or operation of the Seabrook
Project, including without limitation decommissioning costs, are materially higher than anticipated, or if the
prices at which Great Bay is able to sellits share of the Seabrook Project electricity do not increase at the rates

,

and within the time expected by Great Bay, Great Bay would be required to raise additional capital, either
! through a debt financing or an equity fimancing, to meet its ongoing cash requirements.
|

Ba> Corp's principal asset available to serve as collateral for borrowings is Great Bay's 12.1% interest in
the Seabrook Project. Pursuant to a purchased power agreement, dated as of April 1,1993, between Great Bay
and UNITIL Power Corp., Great Bay's interest in the Seabrook Prcject is encumbered by a mortgage. This
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j mortgage may be subordinated to up to $80 million of senior secured financing. See " Business- Purchased
Power Agreements."

BayCorp's cash and short-term investments decreased approximately $9.7 million during 1997. The
principal factor affecting liquidity during 1997 was the reduced operating income discussed above. Non-cash
charges to income included $3.5 million for depreciation, $4.0 million for nuclear fuel amortization, $2.7 >

million for decommissioning trust fund accretion and a decrease in accounts receivable of $2.5 million due to ,

reduced December 1997 sales revenues resulting from the unscheduled December 1997 outage. OfTsetting
these non-cash charges to income were cash charges of $4.5 million for capital expenditures for plant and

| nuclear fuel. Cash charges also included an increase in prepaids of $1.1 million primarily due to prepayments
'

to Seabrook for funding of operating expenses in 1997. In December 1996, the prepaid Seabrook balance was
a negative $1.3 million due to the timing ditTerences between funding of December 1996 budgeted Seabrook
expenses and the payment of actual December 1997 expenses in February 1997. Other cash used in operating

. activities included a decrease in taxes accrued due to the Company's payment of 1996 property taxes in 1997

( and a decrease in miscellaneous liabilities of $2.5 million due in part to the Seabrook funding balance of $1.3

| million referred to above, classified as a miscellaneous liability at year end 1996. The reduction in
miscellaneous liabilities also includes a $790,000 reduction in the outage accrual as the Company had accrued,
as of December 31,1997, $1.1 million, or approximately six months of projected outage expenses related to
the 1999 refueling outage, compared to the December 31, 1996 outage accrual of $1.9 million, or

| approximately twelve months of projected outage expenses related to the 1997 refueling outage. Also in 1997,
'

BayCorp purchased 66,955 shares of the Company's Common Stock for an aggregate of $535,000 or an
average of $7.99 per share.

Great Bay's 1997 decommissioning payments totaled approximately $1.1 million. The decommissioning
funding schedule is determined by the NDFC, which reviews the schedule for the Seabrook Project at least

| annually. An NDFC review is scheduled to occur during 1998. Great Bay expects to use revenues from the
j sale of power to make these decommissioning payments. The current review by the NRC could substantially
I increase Great Bay's costs of decommissioning funding if Great Bay does not meet the NRC's definition of an

electric utility (see " Business- Recent Developments"). Failure to obtain relief may cause a material
adverse effect to Great Bay.

Great Bay anticipates that its share of the Seabrook Project's capital expenditures for the 1998 fiscal year
; mil total approximately $7.4 million for nuclear fuel and various capital projects.

For each of the tax years 1994,1995,1996 and 1997, Great Bay filed property tax aba ement applications
with the three New Ilampshire towns in which the Seabrook Project is located. The outcome of the
Company's appeals with respect to property tax assessments will afTect the Company's liquidity and obligation
for property tax payments in the future. See " Legal Proceedings."

Certain Factors That May Affect Future Results

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements. For this purpose, any statements
contained herein that are not statements of historical fact may be deemed to be forward-looking statements.
Without limiting the foregoing, the words " believes," " anticipates," " plans," " expects," " intends" and similar

'
expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. There are a number of important factors that

; could cause the results of BayCorp and/or Great Bay to ditTer materially from those indicated by such
forward-looking statements. These factors include, without limitation, those set forth below and elsew here in
this Annual Report.

Ownership of a Single Asset. BayCorp's principal asset is it equity interest in Great Bay. Great Bay
owns a single principal asset, a 12.1% joint interest in the Seabrook Neclear Power Project in Seabrook, New
Ilampshire. Accordingly, BayCorp's results of operations are completely dependent upon the successful and
continued operation of the Seabrook Project. In particular, if the Seabrook Project experiences unscheduled
outages of significant duration, Great Bay's results of operations will be materially adversely affected.

18

._. _.



_ .-. - - - . __ - . . _ _ - . - - -- , . . ._

\ History ofLosses: Implementation ofBusiness Strategy. BayCorp has never reported an operating profnt
I for any year since its incorporation. The Company's business strategy is to seek purchasers for its share of the
; Seabrook Project electricity output at prices, either in the short-term market or pursuant to medium or long-
j term contracts, significantly in excess of the prices currently available in the short-term wholesale electricity
| market. Sales at current short-term rates do not result in sutlicient revenue to enable BayCorp to meet its cash
'

requirements for operations, maintenance and capital related costs. Great Bay's ability to obtain such higher
prices will depend on regional, national and worldwide energy supply and demand factors that are beyond the
control of Great Bay. There can be no assurance that Great Bay ever will be able to sell power at prices that
will enable it to meet its cash requirements.

Liquidity Needs. As of December 31,1997, BayCorp had approximately $19.1 million in cash and cash
| equivalents and short-term investments. The Company believes that such cash, together with the anticipated
) proceeds from the sale of electricity by Great Bay, will be sufficient to enable the Company to meet its cash
| requirements until the prices at which Great Bay can sell its electricity increase sulliciently to enable the
! Company to cover its annual cash requirements. Ilowever, if the Seabrook Project operated at a capacity
| factor below historical levels, or if expenses associated with the ownership or operation of the Seabrook
| Project, including without limitation decommissioning costs, are materially higher than anticipated, or if the
!

prices at w hich Great Bay is able to sell its share of the Seabrook Project electricity do not increase at the rates
and within the time expected by Great Bay, Great Bay or the Company would be required to raise additional
capital, either through a debt financing or an equity financing, to meet ongoing cash requirements. There is no
assurance that Great Bay or the Company would be able to raise such capital or that the terms on which any
additional capital is available would be acceptable, if additional funds are raised by issuing equity securities,
dilution to then existing stockholders will result.

|
| Changes in Power Sale Contract Terms Available in Wholesale Power Market. In the past, wholesale
| sellers of electric power, which typically were regulated electric utilities, frequently entered into medium or

long-term power sale contracts providing for prices in excess of the prices available in the short-term market,
which includes contracts of one year or less in duration. In recent years, increased competition in the
wholesale electric power market, reduced growth in the demand for electricity, low prices in the short-term !

market and the uncertainty associated with deregulation of the industry have reduced the willingness of
'

wholesale power purchasers to enter into medium or long-term contracts and have reduced the prices
obtainable from such contracts.

Risks in C<mnection with Joint Ownership of Seabrook Project. Great Bay is required under the
Agreement for Joint Ownership, Construction and Operation of New llampshire Nuclear Units dated May 1,
1973, as amended, by and among Great Bay and the other 10 utility companies that are owners of the !
Seabrook Project (the "JOA"), to pay its share of Seabrook Unit I and Seabrook Unit 2 expenses, including |

without limitation operations and maintenance expenses, construction and nuclear fuel expenditures and
decommissioning costs, regardless of Seabrook Unit l's operations. Under certain circumstances, a failure by
Great Bay to make its monthly payments under the JOA entitles certain other joint owners of the Seabrook
Project to purchase Great Bay's interest in the Seabrook Project for 75% of the then fair market value thereof.

In addition, the failure to make monthly payments under the JOA by owners of the Seabrook Project
other than Great Bay may have a material adverse elTect on Great Bay by requiring Great Bay to pay a greater
proportion of the Seabrook Project expenses in order to preserve the value of its share of the Seabrook Project.
In the past, certain of the owners of the Seabrook Project other than Great Bay have not made their full !

| respective payments. The electric utility industry is undergoing significant changes as competition and
deregulation are introduced into the marketplace. Some utilities, including certain Participants, have indicated
in state regulatory proceedings that they may be forced to seek bankruptcy protection if regulators, as part of
the industry restructuring, do not allow for full recovery of stranded costs. If a Participant other than Great

; Bay filed for bankruptcy and that Participant was unable to pay its share of Seabrook Project expenses, Great
Bay might be required to pay a greater portion of Seabrook Project expenses. In the past, the filing of
bankruptcy by a Participant has not resulted in a failure to pay Seabrook Project expenses or an increase in the
percentage of expenses paid by other Participants.
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On February 28,1997, the N11PUC issued an order requiring stranded cost recovery to be based on the.

average market price of electricity in New England, rather than alternative regulatory accounting methods
that are more favorable to the Participants. On March 10,1997, one of the Participants, Northeast Utilities
(along with three of its subsidiaries), received a temporary restraining order from the U.S. District Court for
the District of Rhode Island. This temporary restraining order stayed the NilPUC's February 28,1997 order
to the extent that the order established a rate methodol that is not designed to recover the cost of providing
service and would require Northeast Utilities and certaia of its afliliates to write-oft any regulatory assets. If
this stay or a similar court action does not remain in etrect and Northeast Utilities is unable to pay its share of
Seabrook Project expenses, Great Bay might be required to pay a greater portion of Seabrook Project
expenses.

The Seabrook Project is owned by Great Bay and the other owners thereof as tenants in common, with
the various owners holding varying ownership shares. This means that Great Bay, which owns only a 12.1%
interest, does not have control of the management of the Seabrook Project. As a result, decisions may be made
alTecting the Seabrook Project notwithstanding Great Bay's opposition.

Certain costs and expenses of operating the Seabrook Project or owning an interest therein, such as
certain insurance and decommissioning costs, are subject to increase or retroactive adjustment based on
factors beyond the control of BayCorp or Great Bay. The cost of disposing of Unit 2 of the Seabrook Project is
not known at this time. These various costs and expenses may adversely afTect BayCorp and Great Bay,
possibly materially.

Extensive Government Regulation. The Seabrook Project is subject to extensive regulation by federal
and state agencies. In particular, the Seabrook Project and Great Bay as part owner of a licensed nuclear
facility, are subject to the broad jurisdiction of the NRC, which is empowered to authorize the siting,
construction and operation of nuclear reactors after consideration of pubhc health and safety, environmental
and antitrust matters. Great Bay is also subject to the jurisdiction of the FERC and, as a result,is required to
file with FERC all contracts for the sale of electricity, FERC has the authority to suspend the rates at which
Great Bay proposes to sell power, to allow such rates to go into etTect subject to refund and to modify a
proposed or existing rate if FERC determines that such rate is not "just and reasonable." FERC's jurisdiction
also includes, among other things, the sale, lease, merger, consolidation or other disposition of facilities,
interconnection of certain facilities, accounts, service and property records. Compliance with the various
requirements of the NRC and FERC is expensive. Noncompliance with NRC requirements may result,
among other things, in a shutdown of the Seabrook Project.

The NRC has promulgated a broad range of regulations affecting all aspects of the design, construction
and operation of a nuclear facility, such as the Seabrook Project, including performance of nuclear safety
systems, fire protection, emergency response planning and notification systems, insurance and quality
assurance. The NRC retains authority to modify, suspend or withdraw operating licenses, such as the license
pursuant to which the Seabrook project operates, at any time that conditions warrant. For example, the NRC
might order Seabrook Unit I shut down (i) if flaws were discovered in the construction or operation of
Seabrook Unit 1, (ii) if problems developed with respect to other nuclear generating plants of a design and
construction similar to Unit I, or (iii) if accidents at other nuclear facilities suggested that nuclear generating
plants generally were less safe than previously believed.

Great Bay is also subject to the New flampshire public utility law and regulations of the NilPUC that
afTect, among other things, the issuance of securities, transfer of utility property and contacts with alliliates as
well as the sale, lease, merger, consolidation or other disposition of facilities. The NilPUC does not regulate
wholesale electricity rates.

Risk of Nuclear Accident. Nuclet r reactors have been used to generate electric power for more than 35
years and there are currenQ more than !00 nuclear reactors used for electric power generation in the United
States. Although the safety record of thete nuclear reactors in the United States generally has been very good,
accidents and other unforeseen problems have occurred both in the United States and elsewhere, including the
well-publicized incidents at Three Mile Island in Pennsylvania and Chernobyl in the former Soviet Union.
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l

The consequences of such an accident can be severe, including loss of life and property damage, and the
available insurance coverage may not be sullicient to pay all the damages incurred.

Public Controversy Concerning Nuclear Power Plants. Substantial controversy has existed for some ,

time concerning nuclear generating plants and over the years such opposition has led to construction delays. !
cost overruns, licensing delays, demonstrations and other dilliculties. The Seabrook Project w as the sunject of
significant public controversy during its construction and licensing and remains controversial. An increase in
public concerns regarding the Seabrook Project or nuclear power in general could adversely alTect the
operating license of Seabrook Unit 1. While Great Bay cannot predict the ultimate elTect of such controversy,
it is possible that it could result in a premature shutdown of the unit.

Waste Disposal; Decommissioning Cost. There has been considerable public concern and regulatory
attention focused upon the disposal oflow- and high-level nuclear wastes produced at nuclear facilities and the
ultimate decommissioning of such facilities. As to waste disposal concerns, both the federal govermnent and
the State of New llampshire are currently delinquent in the performance of their statutory obligations. See
" Business- Nuclear Waste Disposal." in April 1995, a privately owned facility in Utah was approved as a
disposal facility for certain types of LLW. Additionally, the Barnwell, South Carolina disposal facility was

i

reopened in July 1995 to all states except North Carolina as a result of legislation passed by the South |
Carolina legislature. The Seabrook Project began shipping certain LLW to the Utah facility in December
1995. All LLW generated by the Seabrook Project that exceeds the maximum radioactivity level of LLW ;

accepted by the Utah facility is stored on-site at the Seabrook facility. Based on information provided by
NAESCO, management believes that the on-site storage capacity for LLW generated by the Seabrook i
Project is adequate until at least 2006. I

1

As to decommissioning, NRC regulations require that upon permanent shutdown of a nuclear facility, |
appropriate arrangements for full decontamination and decommissioning of the facility be made. These 1

regulations require that during the operation of a facility, the owners of the facility must set aside sullicient
funds to defray decommissioning costs. While the owners of the Seabrook Project are accumulating a trust
fund to defray decommissioning costs, these costs could substantially exceed the value of the trust fund, and
the owners (including Great Bay) would remain liable for the excess. Moreover, the amount that is required to
be deposited in the trust fund is subject to periodic review and adjustment by an independent commission of
the State of New Hampshire, which could result in material increases in such amounts.

In January 1997, the NRC issued a temporary exemption to Great Bay from the obligation of Great Bay
to comply with the NRC's regulations applicable to a non " electric utility" owner of an interest in a nuclear
power. In the exemption, the NRC staff stated that it believes that Great Bay currently does not satisfy the
N RC definition of " electric utility." If Great Bay is an " electric utility," then Great Bay may satisfy the NRC
decommissioning requirements through its monthly payments into the decommissioning trust fund. If Great
Bay is not an " electric utility," the NRC could require that Great Bay provide a surety bond or other allowable
decommissioning funding mechanisms. On January 30,1998, Great Bay filed a petition with the NRC seeking
a determination by the NRC that acceleration of decommissioning trust fund payments provides reasonable
assurance of decommissioning funding under NRC regulations, or, in the alternative, merits the issuance by
the NRC of a permanent exemption to Great Bay. Failure to obtain relief may have a material adverse elTect
on Great Bay's business, f nancial condition, liquidity or results of operation. See " Business - Recent
Developments "

Intense Competition. Great Bay sells its share of Seabrook Project electricity primarily into the
Northeast United States wholesale electricity market. There are a large number of suppliers to this market
and competition is intense. A primary source of competition comes from traditional utilities, many of uhich
presently have excess capacity. In r ' ion, non-utility wholesale generators of electricity, such as IPPs, QFs
and EWGs. as well as power marketeu and brokers, actively sell electricity in this market, Great Bay may face
increased competition, primarily based on price, from all sources in the future. >

RisA Rc/ated to Holding Company. In contrast with Great Bay, the activities of BayCorp will not be
subject to the extensive government regulation related to public utilities and licensed nuclear facilities. Thus,
BayCorp will not receive the benefit of the scrutiny by federal and state agencies that Great Bay receives. In
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addition, BayCorp may pursue activities with a greater business risk than those associated with a regulated ;

entity such as Great Bay. Depending on the success of any new activities that BayCorp determines to pursue,
- it is possible that BayCorp's earnings per share and dividends, if any, might be lower than if BayCorp did not
pursue such activities. ]

Year 2000. The Company has assessed the impact of the year 2000 issue on its computer systems and )
applications. The Company believes that there are no material year 2000 related costs to be incurred relative
to its computer systems and applications. However, Great Bay's share of the costs of addressing year 2000
issues at the Seabrook Project is currently estimated at $177,000, according to NAESCO. If NAESCO is ;
unable to complete year 2000 compliance e! Torts in a timely manner or if year 2000 compliance costs exceed i

NAESCO's estimate, the Company's operations, financial condition and liquidity could be materially and !

adversely alTected.

Item 8. Financial htatements and Supplementary Data.

The response to this item is submitted in the' response found under item 14(a)(1) in this report.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosures.

Not Applicable.
,

PART 111

| tem 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant.

(a) Directors. The information with respect to directors required under this item is incorporated herein
by reference to the section captioned " Election of Directors" in the Company's Proxy Statement with respect
to the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 5,1998.

(b) Executive Officers. The information with respect to executive officers required under this item is
incorporated by reference to Part I of the Report.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The information required under this item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections entitled
" Election of Directors- Comrmation for Directors," "- Executive Compensation," "- Employment
Agreements." "- Report of tL Lompensation Committee" and "- Stock Performance Graph" in the
Company's Proxy Statement with respect to the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 5,1998.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Afanagement.

The information required under this item is incorporated herein by reference to the section entitled
" Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management" in the Company's Proxy Statement
with respect to the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 5,1998,

item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.

The information required under this item is incorporated herein by reference to the section entitled
" Election of Directors- Employment Agreements" in the Company's Proxy Statement with respect to the
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 5,1998.

PART IV

Item 14. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K.

(a) Documentsfiled as a part of this Form 10-K:

1. Financial Statements. The Consolidated Financial Statements listed in the Index to Consoli-
dated Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules are filed as part of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

l
22 j

1



____ __

2. Financial Statement Schedules. The Financial Statement Schedules listed in the index to
Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules are filed as part of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

- 3. Exhibits. The Exhibits listed in the Exhibit Index immediately preceding such Exhibits are filed
as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K:

None.

I

i
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUllLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors of
Ba> Corp iloidings, Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of HayCorp lloldings, Ltd. (a Delaware
corporation) and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Great Llay Power Corporation, as of December 31,1997 and
1996 and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders' equity and cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 1997. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

t

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of rnaterial misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall i

financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the i

financial position of Ha3 Corp iloidings, Ltd. and its wholly owned subsidiary as of December 31,1997 and
1996, and the results of their operations and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31,1997 in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

1

ARTliUR ANDliRSI N LLP

Boston, Massachusetts

January 30,1998

(Except with respect to the matter
discussed in Notes 7,8 and i1, as to
which the date is March 19, 1998.)
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HAYCORP llOLDINGS, LTD.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SilEETS
(Dollars in Thousands)

December 31 December 31,
1997 19 %

ASSETS:

Current Assets:
' Cash & Cash equivalents . . . $ 3,270 $ 16,412........... . ........ ... ..

' Short-term Investments, at market . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15,822 12,363..... .........

Accounts Receivable . . . . . . . . . 465 2,927. ... . . ...... . ... ...... .
3,816 4,121Materials & Supplies, net . .... ... .. . . ...... ...

Prepayments & Other Assets. . . . . . . . 1.570 434.. . ... .. ... .. .

Total Current Assets. . . . . . . . . 24,943 36.257....... ... . ... . ...... ..

Property, Plant, & Equipment-
U tility Plant . . . . . . . . . . . . . 108,584 106,656..... . ........ .. ...... . ....

' Less: Accumulated Depreciation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (9.758) (7,152)....... . . ..

Net Utility Plant . . . 98.826 99,504.. . .. ......... ... . .. . .... .... .
15,076 20,091Nuclear Fuel . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... .. . . .. . ..... ... ....

Less: Accumulated Amortization . . . . . . . . ~ (6,717) (9,692)
... . . . .... .

Net Nuclear Fuel 8.359 10,399
. ... ... . .... .. ... .. ... . .. ..

Net Property, Plant & Equipment .. 107,185 109,903.... . .. . .. .... . ..

Other Assets:
Decommissioning Trust Fund . . . 8,025 6,234

.. ... .. . .. .. . .. .

Deferred Debits & Other . . 5 24
. ... ... .. .. ...

: Total Other Assets . . 8.030 6.258.... . .. , . .. ... . ... ..

Total Assets. . . . . . . . . . $140,158 $152,418
...... ....... . ... .. ...

LIABILITIES AND STOCKIIOLDERS' EQUITY:
Current I.iabilities:

' Accounts Payable and Acerned Expenses . . . . . . . . $ 270 $ 129. .... .. ..

Taxes A ccru ed . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0 1,504. ... . ..

Miscellaneous Current Liabilities . 1,594 _ 4,072.... ..... . . ... . . . ..

Total Current Liabilities. . 1,864 5,705
.. ... ... ... . ... .. . ... .

Operating Reserves:
55,846 53,215Decommissioning Liability. . . ... . ..... . . .. . . .

Miscellaneous Other . . . . . . . 564 621... . .... ... . .... ... .. .
56,410 53,836

Total Operating Reserves . . . . . . . . ... .. ... . ..

Other Liabihties & Deferred Credits . 3,745 3,252
. . .... .. . . .... . ..

Commitments & Contingencies
Stockholders' Equity:

Common stock,5.01 par value
Authorized - 20,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding-
8,417,800 at December 31,1997 and

84 84December 31, 1996 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. .. ...

Less: Treasury Stock - 145,000 and 78,045 shares, respectively, at cost (1,168) (633)
Additional paid-in capital. . . 92,100 92.100.. ..... .. .. .., . .

lloiding Gain (Loss) on Investments. . I15 (149).. .. .

Accumulated Deficit . . . (12,992) (1 777). ... . .. . .. ... ..

Total Stockholders' Equity. . . . . . . . 78,139 ;5.. . . .. .

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity . . $140.158 j2dj... . ..

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated statements.)
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HAYCORP IIOLDINGS, LTD.
f

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME,

Years Ended December 31,

(Dollars in Thousands) '

1997 1"96 1995

Operating Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 26,642 $ 30,324 $ 24,524 -. .. .. ..

Operating Expenses:

Prod uction . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20,805 17,141 17,433. . . . . . .. ...

. Transmission . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 857 880 934. . . . . . .. .....

Administn.tive & General . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7,525 6,864 6.532
Depreciation & Amortization . . 3,508 3,451 -3,339. .. . . . . .... .. ..

Taxes other than income _ . . . . . . 4,185 4.227- 4.143.. . . . .. . ... .

y Total Operating Expenses . . . . . . . . . 36.880 32.563 32.381 |. . . . . ... ..

Operating Income (Loss) . . . . . (10,238) (2.239) (7.857) i...... .... .. ...

Other (Income) Deductions: j
Interest and Dividend (Income) Expense. . (1,252) (1,267) (1,546) t

. . . .. .... ...

Decommissioning Cost Accretion . . . . . 2,663 2,261 0. ... .. .

Decommissioning Trust Fund Income. . . . . . . . . (470) (328) 0 i
... .

Unit 2 Sales and Other (Inccme) , . . 36 (7,005) (198). . . . . . . . . . . ..

Total Other (Income) Deductions. 977 (6.339) (1,744). . . . . . ...... . ..

Earnings (Loss) Before Income Taxes . . . . (11,215) 4,100 - (6,113). . ....... .

Provision for Income Taxes ..... .................. . 0 0- (54)

Net Income (Loss) . . . . . . $ (11.215) $ 4.100 $ (6.059).. .. . . . . .. ..... ..

Weighted Average Shares Outstanding . . . . 8,292,534 8,083,576 7,999,998. . . . . ..... ..

Basic and Diluted Earnings /(Loss) Per Share. . . . . . . . . $'- (1.35) $ 0.51 $ (0.76)......

..

l l
l

| [

t

i

..

; (The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated statements.)
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IIAYCORP llOI DINGS, LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CilANGES IN STOCKilOI.DERS' EQUITY
(Dollars in Thousands)

Common
Stock S.HI I*ar Value less:

luned and Inued and Treasur) Additional lloiding Total
S'" boutstanding outstanding l' aid-in Gain / Itetained Stockholders'

Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital (l.ou) ICarnings l' quit)

Balance at December 31,1994. 8.000!J00 $80 - - $88,030 - $ 182 5 88.292

Financial Results,
January I to

- - (6.059) (6.059)December 31,1995
_ _- - -

Halance at December 31,1995, 8,000,000 80 - - 88,030 - (5,877) 82,233

Treasury Stock, at cost . - - 78,045 ($ 633) - - - (633)

Sale of Common Stock . 417,800 4 - 4,069 - - 4.073

Net Change in Unrealized
- ($148) - (148)lloiding Loss, - - -

Financial Results,
Jatiuary I to

- 4.100 4.100December 31,19% - -- - -

Balance at December 31,1996. 8.417,800 84 78,045 (633) 92.099 (148) (1,777) 89,625

Treasury Stock - 66,955 shares, at
cost . - - %,955 (535) - - - (535)

Net Change in Unrealized
- 264 - 264llolding Loss. - - - -

Financial Results,
January I to

- (l1.215) ( l 1,' ' - )December 31,1997 - - - - -

Halance at December 31,1997. 8.417,800 $M 145.000 ( $ 1.168 ) $92,099 $ 116 ($12,992) $ 78.139

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated statements.)
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j IIAYCORP IIOLDINGS, LTD.

| CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASil FLDWS
! Years Ended December 31,

(Dollars in Thousands)

! 1997 1996 1995

Net cash now from operating activities:
Net income (Loss) $(11,215) $ 4,100 $ (6,059). . .. .

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities:
Depreciation 3,508 3,451 3,339. .. . . . . ..

,

Amortization of nuclear fuel. 4,010 4,366 4,520... . . ... .. .. .

Decommissioning trust accretion 2,663 2.261 0.. . . , . .

Decommissioning trust interest. . . .. . . (470) (357) 0
Deferred income taxes . 0 0 (94). . . .. . .

Writedow n of assets, net . . 0 0 758. . . .

Gain on sale of assets 0 (7,061) (193). . . . .

' Payment of reorgar.' ration expenses. 0 0 (2,653). ... .

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable. 2,463 (1.393) 1,021.

(Increase) decrease in materials & supplies. . . 124 (70) 113
(Increase) decrease in prepaids and other assets . (1,117) 818 1,718. . .. .

increase (decrease) in accounts payable. 140 (107) (66).

Increase (decrease) in taxes accrued. (1,504) 211 126. .

Increase (decrease) in mise. current liabilities. (2,477) 2,635 0. .

Other . 435 53__0 183. . . . ,

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (3,440) 9,364 2,713

Net cash flows (used in) investing activities:
Utility plant additions (2,555) (1,486) (1,770). ..... . .

Nuclear fuel additions . (1,970) (5,144) (5,703). .

Payments to decommissioning fund . (1,106) (994) (988). . .

Proceeds from sale of Unit 2 assets . 0 7.061 0.

Short term investments, net (3.535) (4,724) (3.911).

Net cash used in investing activities (9,166) (5,287) (12,372).

Net cash provided by financing activities:
Sale of common stock . . . . 0 4.074 0. .

Reacquired Capital Stock . . . . ... (535) (633) 0

Net cash (used in) provided by fir.ancing activities. (535) 3.441 0. .

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents. (13,141) 7,538 (9,659).

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period . 16,412 8.874 18,533.

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period . $ 3.271 $16.412 $ 8.874

I
!

|

| (The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated statements.)
|
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IIAYCORP llOLDINGS, LTD.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL. STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31,1997

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. The Company

Ba> Corp floldings, Ltd. ("BayCorp" or the " Company") serves as a holding company for Great Bay
Power Corporation (" Great Bay"). Great Bay is an electric generating company whose principal asset is a
12.1% joint ownership interest in the Seabrook Nuclear Power Project in Seabrook, New llampshire (the
"Seabrook Project"). Great Bay is an exempt wholesale generator under the Public Utility lloiding Company
Act of 1935 ("PUllCA"). Unlike regulated public utilities, Great Bay has no franchise area or captive
customers. Great Bay sells its power in the competitive wholesale power markets. )

Great Bay became a wholly-owned subsidiary of BayCorp in a corporate reorganization that insolved a
merger of a newly-formed wholly-owned subsidiary of Ba3 Corp with and into Great Bay on January 24,1997.
The consolidated assets and liabilities of Great Bay and its subsidiaries immediately before the reorganization
were the same as the consolidated assets and liabilities of BayCorp and its subsidiaries immediately after the
reorganization. Currently, Great Bay is the sole subsidiary of BayCorp. BayCorp's principal asset is its 100%
equity interest in Great Bay. The new corporate structure enables BayCorp, either directly or through
subsidiaries other than Great Bay, to engage in businesses that Great Bay would be prohibited from pursuing
due to its status as an exempt wholesale generator under the PUllCA.

BayCorp was incorporated in Delaware in 1996. Great Bay was incorporated in New llampshire in 1986
and was formerly known as EUA Power Corporation (the " Predecessor"). Great Bay sells its share of the
electricity output of the Seabrook Project in the wholesale electricity market, primarily in the Northeast
United States. Neither BayCorp nor Great Bay has operational responsibilities for the Seabrook Project. Great
Bay's share of the Seabrook Project capacity is approximately 140 megawatts ("MW"). Great Bay currently
sells all but 10 MW of its share of the Seabrook Project capacity in the wholesale short-term market.

The Seabrook Proje:t is a nuclear-fueled, steam electricity, generating plant located in Seabrook, New
llampshire, which was originally planned to have two Westinghouse pressurized water reactors, Seabrook
Unit I and Seabrook Unit 2 (each with a rated capacity of 1,150 megawatts), utilizing ocean water for
condenser cooling purposes. Seabrook Unit i entered commercial service on August 19, 1990. Seabrook
Unit 2 has been canceled. Great Bay became a wholesale generating company when Seabrook Unit I
commenced commercial operation on August 19,1990. In 1993, the Company became an Exempt Wholesale
Generator ("EWG") under the Energy Policy Act of 1992.

Great Bay and the other Participants are parties to the Agreement for Joint Ownership, Construction and
Operation of New flampshire Nuclear Units (the "JOA") which establishes the respective ownership
interests of the Participants in the Seabrook Project and defines their responsibilities with respect to the
ongoing operation, maintenance and decommissioning of the Seabrook Project. In general, all ongoing costs of
the Seabroox Project, other than taxes, are divided proportionately am'ong the Participants in accordance with
their ownership interests in the Seabrook Project. Each Participant is only liable for its share of the Seabrook
Project's costs and not liable for any other Participant's share. Great Bay's joint ow nership interest of 12.1% is
the third largest interest among the Participants, exceeded only by the approximately 40% interest held by
Northeast Utilities and its atliliates and the 17.5% interest held by The United Illuminating Company.

The Predecessor never reported an operating profit since its incorporation and filed for bankruptcy in
1991. The Company's current business strategy is to seek purchasers for its share of the Seabrook Project
electricity output at prices, either in the short term market or pursuant to medium or long term contracts, in
excess of the prices currently available in the short term wholesale electricity market since sales at current
short term rates do not result in suflicient revenue to enable the Company to meet its long term cash
requirements for operations, maintenance and capital related costs. The Company's ability to obtain such
higher prices will depend on regional, national and worldwide energy supply and demand factors.

F-6
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BAYCORP llOLDINGS, ||I'D. ~!

NOTES TO FINANCI Al, STATEM ENTS - Continued
:
f

As of March 1,1998 BayCorp has five employees, including its President and Chief Executive Ollicer,
John A. Tillinghast, and. its Chief Operating Officer, Frank W. Getman Jr. BayCorp's wholly-owned
subsidiary, Great Bay, has one employee.

B. _ Bankruptcy Proceeding and Reorganization
,

Great Bay filed a voluntary petition for reorganization under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy
Code (the " Bankruptcy Code") in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of New llampshire
(the " Bankruptcy Court") on February 28,1991. Great Bay conducted its business as a Debtor in Possession
until November 23,1994, at which time Great Bay's Amended Bankruptcy Plan became effective and Great
.f. lay emerged from Chapter 11. Financing for the Amended Bankruptcy Plan was provided by alliliates of
Omega Advisors, Inc. and by Elliot Associates, LP. (collectively, the " Investors"). At the 'ime Great Bay
emerged from Chapter' 11, the investors purchased 4,800,000 shares of Great Bay's Common Stock for
$35,000,000.

?

C. Regulation
|

Great Bay is subject to the regulatory authority of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
("FERC"), the Nuclear Regulatory Commission ("NRC"), the New Ilampshire Public Utilities Commis-

'sion ("NilPUC") and other federal and state agencies as to rates, operations and other matters. Great Bay's
cost of service, however, is not regulated. As such, Great Bay's accounting policies are not subject to the |
provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 71," Accounting for the Efrects of 1

Certain Types of Regulation."

D. Use of Management Estimates '

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles |
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that alTect the reported amounts of asats and ;
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the fmancial statements and the i

|reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could dilTer from those
estimates.

E. Utility Plant

The costs of additions to utility plant are recorded at original cost. ;

F. Depreciation f

Utility plant is depreciated on the straight-line method at rates designed to fully depreciate all depreciable
properties over the lesser of estimated useful lives or the Seabrook Project's remaining NRC license life,
wFich expires in 2026. ;

Capital projects constituting retirement units are charged to electric plant. Minor repairs are charged to
maintenance expense. When properties are retired, the original cost, plus costs of removal, less sa;vage, are {
charged to the accumulated provision for depreciation. !

!
G. Amortiration of Nuclear Fuel

| The cost of nuclear fuelis amortized to expense based on the rate of burn-up of the individual assemblies !
( comprising the total core. Great Bay also provides for the cost of disposing of spent nuclear fuel at rates i

specified by the United States Department of Energy (" DOE") under a contract for disposal between Great |
Bay, through its managing agent NAESCO, and the DOE. !

!
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BAYCORP llOI. DINGS, LTD.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-Continued

Great Bay recorded the estimated cost of the final unspent nuclear fuel core, which is expected to be in
place at the expiration of th; Seabrook Project's NRC operating license, as part of Great Bay's original" Fresh
Start" balance sheet.

11. Amortization of MaNrials and Supplies

Great Bay amortizes to expense an amount designed to fully amortire the cost of the material and
supplies inventory that is expected to be on hand at the expiration of the Plant's NRC operating license.

L Decommissioning

Based on the Financial Accounting Standards Board's ("FASB") tentative conclusions, Great Bay has
recognized as a liability its proportionate share of the estimated Seabrook Project decommissioning. The
initial recognition of this liability was apitalized as part of the Fair Value of the Utility Plant at November 23,

'

1994. The current estimated cost to decommission the Seabrook Project, based on a study performed for the
lead owner of the Plant, is approximately $473 million in 1997 dollars and $2.2 billion in 2026 dollars,
assuming a remaining 28 year life for the facility and a future cost escalation rate of 5% Based on this
estimate, the present value of Great Bay's share of this liability as of December 31,1997 is approximately
$55.8 million.

During the fiist quarter of 1996, the Company began to acercte its share of the Seabrook Project's
decommissioning liability. This accretion is a non-cash charge and recognizes the Company's liability related
to the closure and decommissioning ofits nuclear plant in current year dollars over the licensing period of the
plant. As a result of this accretion, Great Bay's share of the estimated decommissioning cost increased from
$50.2 million as of December 31,1995 to $53.2 million as of December 31,1996 to $55.8 million as of
December 31,1997.

The Seabrook Project's decommissioning estimate and funding schedule is subject to review each year by
the New Hampshire Nuclear Decommissioning Finance Committee ("NDFC"). This estimate is based on a
number of assumptions. Changes in assumptions for such things as labor and material costs, technology,
intiation and timing of decommissioning could cause these estimates to change, possibly materially,in the near
term.

The StalT of the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") has questioned certain of ?h: current
accounting practices of the electric utility industry regarding the recognition, measurement and classification
of decommissioning costs for nuclear generating stations and joint owners in the financial statements of these
entities. In response to these questions, the FASB has agreed to review the accounting for nuclear
decommissioning costs. In 1996, the FASB issued an Exposure Draft entitled " Accounting for Certain '

Liabilities Related to Closure and Removal of Long-Lived Assets." The FASB continues to work on this
project. Either a revised exposure draft or a final statement may be issued in 1998. The Company's accounting
for decommissioning was based on the FASB's original tentative conclusions. If the current exposure draft is
adopted or accounting practices for nuclear power plant decommissioning are changed, Great Bay's
decommissioning liability and annual provision for decommissioning could change relative to 1997. The
Company is unable to predict the impact, if any, changes in the current accounting will have on the
Company's financial statements.

Funds collected by Seabrook for decommissioning are deposited in an external irrevocable trust pending
their ultimate use.The earnings on the external trusts also accumulate in the fund balance. The trust funds are
restricted for use in paying the decommissioning of Unit 1. The investments in the trust are available for sale.
The Company has therefore reported its investment in trust fund assets at market value and any unrealized
gains and losses are reflected in equity. There was an unrealized holding gain of $148,126 as of December 31,
1997 and an unrealized holding loss of $192,087 as of December 31,1996.

F-8
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transfer of assets. Transfers of Unit 2 items to Unit I were done at the historical basis of Unit 2 property or
components.

N. Seabrook Outage Costs

The Company's and Great Bay's operating results and the comparability of these results on an interim
and annual basis are directly impacted by the operations of the Seabrook Project, including the cyclical
refueling outages (generally 18-24 months apart) as well as unscheduled outages. During outage periods at the
Seabrook Project, Great Bay has no electricity for resale and consequently no revenues. Therefore the impact
of outages on the Company's and Great Bay's results of operations and financial position is materially adverse.

}

Great Bay accrues for the incremental costs of the Seabrook Project's scheduled outages over the periods
between those outages. Ilowever, Great Bay continues to expense the normal Seabrook operating and
maintenance expenses as incurred. Therefore, the Company will incur losses during scheduled outage periods
as a result of the combination of the lack of revenue and the recognition of normal recurring operation and
maintenance costs as well as the continuing depreciation of the utility plant. The Seabrook plant management
has scheduled the next refueling outage for March 1999 based on expected fuel consumption. The 1999 outage
has an estimated cost of $31 million. The Company's share is approximately $3.8 million. The estimate is
based on a number of assumptions. Changes in assumptions for such things as labor and contractor costs,
required repairs and days to perform the outage and plant operations in the interim, could cause this estimate
to change.

2. NUCLEAR ISSUES

Like other nuclear generating facilities, the Seabrook Project is ubject to extensive regulation by the
NRC. The NRC is empowered to authorire the siting, construction and operation of nuclear reactors after
consideration of public health, safety, environmental and anti-trust matters.

The NRC has promulgated numerous requirements affecting safety systems, fire protection, emergency
response planning and notification systems, and other aspects of nuclear plant construction, equipment and
operation. The Company has been, and may be, atTected to the extent of its proportionate share by the cost of j,
any such modifications to Seabrook Unit 1.

Nuclear units in the United States have been subject to widespread criticism and opposition. Some
nuclear projects have been canceled following substantial construction delays and cost overruns as the result of
licensing problems, unanticipated construction defects and other difficulties. Various groups have by litigation,
legislation and participation in administrative proceedings sought to prohibit the completion and operation of
nuclear units and the disposal of nuclear waste. In the event of a shutdown of any unit, NRC regulations
require that it be completely decontaminated of any residual radioactivity. The cost of such decommissioning,
depending on the circumstances, could substantially exceed the owners' investment at the time of cancellation.

Public controversy concerning nuclear power could adversely afrect the operating license of Seabrook
Unit 1. While the Company cannot predict the ultimate elTect of such controversy, it is possible that it could
result in a premature shutdown of the unit.

.A. Nuclear Fuel

The Seabrook Project's joint owners have made, or expect to make, various arrangements for the
acquisition of uranium concentrate, the conversion, enrichment, fabrication and utilization of nuclear fuel and
the disposition of that fuel after use. The owners and lead participants of each United States nuclear unit have
entered into contracts, either directly or through the managing agents of their nuclear units, with the DOE for
disposal of spent nuclear fuel, in accordance with the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982 (the "NWPA"). The
NWPA requires (subject to various contingencies) that the federal government design, license, construct and
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Although the owners of Seabrook are accumulating funds in an external trust to defray decommissioning
costs, these costs could substantially exceed the value of the trust fund, and the owners, including Great Bay,
would remain liable for the excess. The amount required to be deposited in the trust fund is subject to periodic
review and adjustment by the NDFC, which could result in material increases in such amounts. Based on the
currently approved funding schedule, Great Bay's decommissioning payments will be approximately $1.2
million in 1998 and escalate at 4"6 per Scar each year thereafter through 2026.

On November 15,1992, Great Bay, the Bondholder's Committee and the Predecessor's former parent,
Eastern Utilities ("EUA") entered into a settlement agreement that resolved certain proceedings against
EU A brought by the Bondholder's Committee. Under the settlement agreement EUA reaffirmed its guarantee
of up to S10 million of Great Bay's future decommissioning costs of Seabrook Unit 1.

J. Operating Resenues

Revenues are recorded on an accrual basis based on bihing rates provided for in contracts and approved
,

by FERC. During the year ended December 31,1997, three customers accounted for 50%,13% and 11% of
total operating revenues. For the year ended December 31,1996, three customers accounted for 26%,15% and
13% of total operating revenues.

K. Taxes on income

The Company accounts for taxes on income under the liability method required by Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No.109.

L Cash Equiialents and Short Term imestments

For purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, the Company considers all highly liquid short-term
investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The carrying amounts
approximate fair value because of the short-term maturity of the investments.

All other short-term investments with a maturity of greater than three months are classified as available
for sale and reDected as a current asset at market value. Changes in the market value of such securities are
reneeted in equity. The unrealized holding loss on short-term investments was $32,841 for the year ended
December 31,1997, the unrealized holding gain was $43,378 for the year ended December 31,1996 and the
change in market value was not material in 1995.

M. Seabrook Unit 2

Since the Seabrook Project was originally designed to consist of two generating units, Great Bay also
owns a 12.1% joint ownership interest in Seabrook Unit 2. Great Bay assigns no value to Seabrook Unit 2
because on November 6,1986, the joint ow ners of the Seabrook Project, recognizing that Seabrook Unit 2 had
been canceled in 1984, voted to dispose of Unit 2. Certain assets of Seabrook Unit 2 have been and are being
sold from time to time to third parties. On July 22,1996, the Participant 3 completed the sale of four unused
steam generators from Seabrook Unit 2. Great Bay received $7,036,792 in cash from the proceeds of this sale
on July 19,1996. Great Bay had previously w ritten ofrits investment n Unit 2 and recognized a gain from thisi

|~
sale in the third quarter of 1996. There were no material sales of Unit 2 assets in 1997.

r
The Participants are considering plans regarding disposition of Seabrook Unit 2, but such plans have not'

yet been finalized and approved. Great Bay is unable to estimate the costs for which it will be responsible in
connection with the disposition of Seabrook Unit 2. Because Seabrook Unit 2 was never completed or
operated, costs associated with its disposition will not include any amounts for decommissioning. Great Bay
currently pays its share of monthly expenses required to preserve and protect the value of the Seabrook Unit 2
components. Any sales of Unit 2 property or inventory are renected in other income as gains on the sale or

I
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| operate a permanent repository for high level radioactise wastes and spent nuclear fuel and establish
prescribed fees for the disposal of such wastes and fuel. The NWPA specifies that the DOE provide for the

; disposal of such wastes and spent nuclear fuel starting in January 1998.

j On November 14,1997 the U.S. District Court of Appeals ruled that the Department of Energy has an
| obligation to begin disposing of spent nuclear fuel from power plants by January 31,1998. Since the DOE was'

unable to dispase of spent fuel by the due date set by Congress in the NWPA, the DOE breached its
obligations as of that date. The DOE filed a Petition for Reconsideration of the Appeals Court ruling and
indicated costs for relief or damages would come from a nuclear waste fund supported by owners of nuclear
plants. These owners, including Great Bay, oppose the DOE's position with respect to using funds provided by
nuclear owners to cover damages arising from the DOE's breach of its obligations.

Objections on environmental and other grounds have been asserted against proposals for storage as weli as
disposal of spent fuel. The DOE anticipates that a permanent disposal site for spent fuel will be ready to
accept fuel for storage on or before the year 2010. Ilowever, the NRC, which must license the site, stated only
thi.t a permanent repository would become available by the year 2025. At the Seabrook Project, there is on-
site storage capacity, which, with minimal capital expenditures, should be sullicient until the year 2010. No
near-term capital expenditures are anticipated to deal with any increase in storage requirements after 2010.

H. Federal Departnient of Energy (" DOE") Decontamination and Decommissioning Assessment

Title XI of tbc Energy Policy Act of 1992 (the " Policy Act") provides for decontaminating and
decommissioning of he DOE's enrichment facilities to be partially funded by a special assessment against
domestic utilities. Each utility's share of the assessment is to be based on its cumulative consumption of DOE
enrichment services. As of December 31,1997, the Company had accrued its pro rata estimated obligation of
$698,000 related to the project's prior years' usage to be paid over the 15-year period beginning October 1,
1992.

C. Price Anderson Act

I in accordance with the Price Anderson Act, the limit of liability for a nuclear-related accident is
approximately $8.9 bi!! ion, effective November 18,1994 The primary layer of insurance for this liability is
$200 million of coverage provided by the commercial insurance market. The secondary coverage is
approximately $8.3 billion, based on the approximately 110 currently licensed reactors in the United States.
The secondary layer is based on a retrospective premium assessment of $75.5 million per nuclear accident per

|~ licensed reactor, payable at a rate not exceeding $10 million per year per reactor, in addition. the retrospective
'

premium is subject to inflation based indexing at five year intervals and,if the sum of all public liability claims
and legal costs arising from any nuclear accident exceeds the maximum amount of financial protection
available, then each licensee can be assessed an additional 5% ($3.775 million) of the maximum retrospective
assessment. With respect to the Seabrook Project, Great Bay would be obligated to pay its ownership share of
any assessment resulting from a nuclear incident at any United States nuclear generating facility. Great Bay
estimates its maximum liability per incident currently would be an aggregate amount of approximately $9.59
million per accident, with a maximuru annual assessment of about $1.21 million per incident, per year.

In addition to the insurance required by the Price Anderson Act, the NRC regulations require licensecs,
including the Seabrook Project, to carry all risk nuclear property damage insurance in the amount of at least
$1.06 billion, which amount must be dedicated, in the event of an accident at the reactor, to the stabilization
and decontamination of the reactor to prevent significant risk to the public health and safety.

!
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D. Nuclear insurance

Insurance has been purchased by the Seabrook Project from Nuclear Electric Insurance Limited
("NEIL") to cover the costs of property damageidecontamination or premature decommissioning resulting
from a nuclear incident :md American Nuclear Insurance / Mutual Atomic Energy Liability Underwriters
("ANI") to cover workers' claims. All companies insured with NEIL and ANI are subject to retroactive
assessments,iflosses exceed the accumulated funds available to NEIL and ANI, respectively. The maximum
potential assesement against the Seabrook Project with respect to losses arising during the current policy years
are $26.4 million. The Company's liability for the retrospective premium adjustment for any policy year ceases
six years after the end of that policy year unless prior demand has been made.

Great liay also independently purchases business interruption insurance from Nuclear Electric Insurance
Limited ("NEIL"). The current policy is in efTect from September 15,1997 until September 15,1998 and
provides for the payment of a fixed weekly loss amount of $520,000 in the event of an outage at the Seabrook
Project of more than 23 weeks resulting from the property damage occurring from a " sudden fortuitous event,

,

which happens by chance,is unexpected and unforeseeable." The maximum amount payable to Great Bay is'

$70.3 million. Under the terms of the policy, Great Bay is subject to a potential retrospective premium

| adjustment of up to approximately $640,000 should NElL's board of directors deem that additional funds are
*

necessary to preserve the financial integrity of NEIL. Since NEIL was founded in 1980, there has been no
retrospective premium adjustment; however, there can be no assurance that NEIL will not make retrospective
adjustments in the future. The liability for this retrospective premium adjustment ceases six years after the
end of the policy unless prior demand has been made.

E. Status as an "Electrie Utility" Under NRC Regulations

On January 27,1997, the NRC issued to Great Bay a temporary exemption from the obligation of Great
Bay to comply with the NRC's regulations applicable to a non " electric utility" owner of an interest in a
nuclear power plant. The NRC staff stated in the exemption that it believed that Great Bay does not currently

- satisfy the NRC definition of" electric utility." If Great Bay is an " electric utility," then Great Bay may satisfy
| the NRC decommissioning requirements through its monthly payments into a decommissioning trust fund.

See "- Decommissioning." If Great Bay is not an " electric utility," the NRC could require that Great Bay
provide a surety bond or other allowable funding assurance mechanism.

The temporary exemption granted Great Bay six months to establish itself as an " electric utility" or
obtain a surety bond or other allowable decommissioning funding mechanism. In February 1997, Great Bay

| requested that the NRC reconsider the staffs finding that Great Bay does not meet the NRC definition of
' " electric utility." Great Bay also requested that the NRC consider granting an extension to the temporary

exemption as an alternative to making a final determination at that time as to whether Great Bay is an
" electric utility" under the NRC definition.

On July 23,1997, the NRC stalT reaffirmed its finding that Great Bay is not an " electric utility" and
issued a one-year exemption to Great Bay from the obligation of Great Bay to comply with the NRC's
regulations applicable to a non " electric utility" owner of an interest in a nuclear power plant. The exemption
gives Great Bay until the earlier of July 23,1998 or 90 days following the effective date of any revisions to the
NRC's regulations regarding the NRC's definition of " electric utility" to obtain a surety bond or other
allowable decommissioning funding assurance mechanism for Great Bay's decommissioning liability related to
its ownership in Seabrook.

| On September 10,1997, the NRC issued a proposed rule that would amend the definition of "electrie
| utility." The Company believes that Great Bay would not be an " electric utility" under the proposed new
I defmition. The NRC requested and receised comments in November 1997 on the proposed rule, but has not
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issued a final rule or amendments to the proposed rule. The Company cannot predict when or if a revision to
the NRC's definition of "electrie utility" will become elTective or what form it could take.

On January 23,1998, Great Bay filed with the NRC a six-month status report on Great Bay's efforts to
obtain a surety bond or other allowable decomrnissioning funding assurance mechanism. After an exhaustive

t survey of the insurance market, Great Bay notified the NRC that no such surety or insurance product is
currently available on financially reasonable terms.

On January 30,1998, Great Bay filed a petition with the NRC seeking a determination by the NRC that
acceleration of decommissioning trust fund payments provides reasonable assurance of decommissioning
funding under NRC regulations, or, in the alternative, merits the issuance by the NRC of a permanent
exemption to Great Bay. In its petition, Great Bay proposes to contribute suflicient fu~.ds by the year 2015 to
allow sullicient monies to accumulate, with no further payments by Great Bay to the fund after 2015, to the
full estimated amount of Great Bay's decommissioning obligation by the time the current Seabrook operating
license expires in 2026.

5

The Company cannot predict uhether Great Bay's accelerated funding proposal will be acceptable to the
NRC or whether the NRC will grant a permanent exemption to Great Bay. Failure to obtain relief may have a
material adverse elTect on Great Bay's business, financial condition, liquidity or results of operations.

3. TANES ON INCOME

The following is a summary of the (benefit) pru ision for income taxes for the years ended December 31,
1997,1996 and 1995:

December 31, December 31, December 31,
IW7 IW6 IWS

UNMrn)

Federal

Current $(8,081 ) $(3,111 ) $(8.065). . .

Deferred 8.081 3,111 8,011.

0 0 (54)
State

Current . (1,927) (742) (1,923). . .

Deferred 1,927 742 1,923. ... . .

0 0 0

Total (benefit) provision . $ 0 $ 0 $_ (54)
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Accuniolated deferred income taxes consisted of the following at December 31,1997 and 1996:
1997 -1996

(000's) ;

Assets
Net operating loss carryforwards . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 76.622 $ 67,847. . ..

Decommissioning expense . . . . . 2,852 1,530
. ... ... . .. .. . .. ...

Unfunded pension expense . . . . . . . . . . . . 542 395.. .. .. ....... . .

Accrued outage expense . . . 163 727.... ...... ...... .. ....... ... . .

inventory . . . . . . . . . 337 126.. . .. . . .. ..... . . . .. .. .. ,

Other, net. 59 19 -
.. .... .. . .... ....... .... . ... .... . .. ..

Liabilities -
Utility plant . (19.230) (13.743)......... . .... . .. ... ...... . .... . ,

Accumulated deferred income tax asset . . 61,345 56,902.. .. .... . ....... . .....
r
;- Valuation allowance . . . . (61,345) (56,902)

. . . . . . . . ..... ... ... . ... . . ...

' - Accumulated deferred income tax asset, net . . . . . . $ 0 $ 0........... ... .

| The total income tax provision set forth above represents 0% in the years ended December 31,1997,1996
and 1995. The following table reconciles the statutory federal income tax rate to those percentages:

December 31 December 31, December 31,
1997 1996 l' 95

(Dollars in Thousands)
''#

'(Loss) Income before taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . $(11,215) $ 4.100 $(6,113)... . . .

Federal statutory rate. 34 % 34% 34 %.. .......... .. . . . ..

Federal income' tax (benefit) expense at statutory levels (3,813) 1,394 (2,078).,

increase (Decrease) from statutory levels ;

| State tax net of federal tax benefit _. (513) 205 (1,269)
'

. . . . . . . .

|L Valuation allowance. 4,442 (1,887) 2,703. . . . . ... . . . . . .

Income of decommissioning trust 0 0 305. .... ..... .. ,

Other . . . (116). 288 285-. ....... .... . . .... ... .... ...

EfTective federal income tax expense. .. . . . $ 0 .$ 0 $ (54).. .

L Vatuation allowances have been provided against any deferred tax assets, net due to the limitations on the,

use of carr> forwards, discussed below, and 'the uncertainty associated with future taxable income. The'

,

- valuation allowance'of $56,036,000 as of December 31,1994 if subsequently recognized will be allocated
directly to paid in capital.

' For federal income tax purposes, as of December 31,1997, the Company had net operating loss carry '

forwards ("NOLs") of approximately $196 million, which are scheduled to expire between 2005 and 2012.
Because the Company has experienced one or more ownership changes, within the meaning of Section 382 of
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, an annual limitation is imposed on the ability of the

' Company to use $136 million of these carr> forwards. The Company's best estimate at this time is that the
: annual limitation on the use of $136 million of the Company's NOLs is approximately $5.5 million per year.

Any unused portion of the $5.5 million annual limitation applicable to the Company's restricted NOL's is
available for use in future years until such NOL's are scheduled to expire. The Company's other $60 million of

| NOLs are not currently subject to such limitations. i

l'
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4. COMMON S" RESTRICT'ONS

Neither the Company nor Great Bay has ever paid cash dividends on its common stock in the past.
BayCorp currently expects that it will retain all ofits future earnings and does not anticipate paying a dividend
in the foreseeable future.

5. CAPITAL EXPENDITURES ~

The Company's cash construction expenditures, including nuclear fuel, are estimated to be approximately
$7.4 million in 1998 and to aggregate approximately $18.1 million for the years 1999 through 2002.

*

6. PURCilASED POWER AGREEMENTS

Great Bay is party to a purchased power agreement, dated as of April 1,1993 (the "UNITIL Purchased
Power Agreement"), with UNITIL Power that provides for Great Bay to sell to UNITIL Power approxi-
mately 10 MW of power. The UNITIL Purchased Power Agreement commenced on May 1,1993 and runs
through October 31,2010. The current price of power under the UNITIL Purchased Power Agreement is 5.18
cents per kilowatt-hour ("kWh") In May 1998 and annually thereafter, the price is subject to increase in
accordance with a formula that provides for adjustments at less than the actual rate of inflation. UNITIL
Power has an option to extend the UNITIL Purchased Power Agreement for an additional 12 years until 2022.

The UNITIL Purchased Power Agreement is front-end loaded whereby UNITIL Power pays higher
prices, on an inflation adjusted basis, in the early years of the Agreement and lower prices in later years. The
average price per kWh and the contract formula rate in the contract are fixed over the life of the contract, so
that any excess cash received in the beginning of the contract will be returned by the end of the contract,
provided the contract does not terminate early. The ditTerence between revenue billed under each rate is
recorded in a " Balance Account" which increases annually to $4.1 million in July 1998, then decreases
annually, reaching zero in July 2001 Therefore, contract revenue is recorded under Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles and Emerging issues Task Force Ruling 91-6 based on the contract rates and no
liability for the " Balance Account" is recognized provided that it is not probable that the contract will
terminate early. If the UNITIL Purchased Power Agreement terminates prior to its scheduled termination,
and if at that time there is a positive amount in the Balance Account, Great Bay is obligated to refund that
amount to UNITIL Power. Management believes it is not probable that either party will terminate this

. contract prior to the end of its initial term.

To secure the obligations of Great Bay under the UNITIL Purchased Power Agreement, including the
obligation to repay UNITIL Power the amount in the Balance Account, the UNITIL Purchased Power

- Agreement grants UNITIL Power a mortgage on Great Bay's interest in the Seabrook Pcoject. This mortgage'

may be subordinated to first mortgage financing of up to a maximurn amount of $80,000,000. The UNITil
Power Purchase Agreement further provides that UNITIL Power's mortgage will rank pari passu with other
mortgages that may hereafter be granted by Great Bay to other purchasers of power from Great Bay to secure
similar obligations, provided that (i) the maximum amount ofindebtedness secured by the first mortgage on
the Seabrook Interest may not exceed $80,000,000, and (ii) the combined total of all second mortgages on the
Seabrook Interest may not exceed the sum of (a) $80.000,000 less the total amount of Great Bay's debt then
outstanding which is secured by a first mortgage plus (b) $57,000,000.

Great Bay is also party to a Purchased Power Agreement, dated November 9,1995 (the "Bangor
Purchased Power Agreement"), with Bangor 11ydro-Electric Company ("Bangor 11ydro") pursuant to which
Bangor liydro agreed to purchase from Great Day, subject to increase or reduction under certain circum-
stances,10 MW of electricity during the months of January through March 1996 and for the months of
November 1996 through March 1997 and November 1997 through March 1998. Pursuant to the Bangor
Purchased Power Agreement, Great Bay also granted to Bangor liydro an extension option to purchase from
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Great Bay, under certain circumstances, up to 10 MW of electricity for the months of November 1998
through March 1999 and November 1999 through March 2000. This option must be exercised by October 22,
1998. ,

7. PECO SERVICES AGREEMENT AND WARRANT AGREEMENT

Great Bay and PECO Energy Company ("PECO") entered into a Services Agreement as of Novera-
ber 3,1995 (the "PECO Services Agreement"), pursuant to which _PECO was appointed as Great Bay's j

exclusive agent to market and sell Great Bay's uncommitted portion of electricity generated by the Seabrook
'

Project. Proceeds from the sale of Great Bay's electricity together with reservation fees payable by PECO to j
Great Bay were shared between Great Bay and PECO in accordance with formulas set forth in the PECO
Services Agreement. In addition, PECO committed, under certain circumstances, to provide back-up power
during periods in which power was partially or totally unavailable from the Seabrook Project. The PECO
Senices Agreement became etTective on December 31,1995 and had initially provided for a term of two
years.

At the time that Great Bay entered into the PECO Services Agreement, Great Bay entered into a
Warrant P irchase Agreement (the "PECO Warrant Purchase Agreement") pursuant to which, on Febru-
ary 15,1996, PECO purchased a warrant from Great Bay for $1,000,000. This warrant entitled PECO to
purchase 4.99% of the total shares outstanding, at that time, of the Company's Common Stock for

,
approximately $4.1 million.

II On September 30,1996, PECO exercised its warrant and purchased 417,800 shares, or 4.99% at that
time, of Great Bay's Common Stock at a price of $9.75 per share. As a result of the exercise of the warrant by
PECO, the PECO Services Agreement was automatically extended through December 31,1998. In addition,
the parties agreed to extend the PECO Senices Agreement for an additional year through December 31,

- 1999. Under the terms of the warrant, the $1,000,000 received for the purchase of the warrant was credited
towards the purchase price for the newly issued shares. Thus, Great Bay received an additional $3.1 million as
a result of PECO's exer.:ise of the warrant.

i On February 12,1998, Great Bay sent a letter to PECO informing PECO that Great Bay had terminated
PECO as Great Bay's exclusive marketing agent. On February 24,1998, Great Bay filed suit against PECO in
the United States District Court for the District of New llampshire seeking a declaratoryjudgment that Great
Bay properly terminated the PECO Services Agreement and seeking damages arising out of PECO's breach of
the PECO Services Agreement. On March 10,1998, PECO filed a motion seeking to prevent Great Bay from
terminating the PECO Senices Agreement. At that time, PECO also filed counterclaims seeking damages for
alleged breach of contract and alleged loss of good will and harm to PECO's reputation. See " Subsequent

! Events."

As of March 1,1998, Great Bay assumed all marketing responsibilities from PECO. Great Bay expects
there will be no interruption in its ability to market its power in the New England region.

H. TRANSACTIONS WITil RELATED PARTIES

In addition to the transactions with PECO discussed. in Footnote 7, the Company has the following
related party transaction.

Under the PECO Services Agreement, PECO acted as the Company's exclusive agent to market and sell
the Company's approximately 130MW of uncommitted capacity generated by the Company's 12% ownership
in the Seabrook Nuclear Power Plant. This Senices Agreement commenced on November 3,1995 and had
been extended through December 31,1999. PECO paid the Company a reservation fee based on the hours
during which Seabrook generates energy. The Company paid PECO a service fee based on net revenues and a
Seabrook operating capacity factor. This service from PECO was expected to permit the Company to compete
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more effectively for firm, all requirements power contracts. This arrangement also provided for the Company
and PECO to jointly pursue other opportunities that were intended to maximize the value of the Company's
interest in Seabrook. For the year ended December 31,1997, the Company expensed $1,813,062 for PECO's
net marketing fees.

On February 12,1998, Great Bay sent a letter to PECO informing PECO that Great Bay had terminated
PECO as Great Bay's exclusive marketing agent. On February 24,1998, Great Bay filed suit against PECO in
the United States District Court for the District of New llampshire seeking a declaratoryjudgment that Great
Bay properly terminated the PECO Services Agreement and seeking damages arising out of PECO's breach of
the PECO Services Agreement. On March 10,1998, PECO filed a motion seeking to prevent Great Bay from
terminating the PECO Services Agreement. At that time, PECO also filed counterclaims seeking damages for
alleged breach of contract and alleged loss of good will and harm to PECO's reputation. See " Subsequent
Events."

8. STOCK OPTION PIAN

On April 24,1995, the Board of Directors of the Company established the 1995 Stock Option Plan (the
" Plan"), which received shareholder approval at the Company's annual meeting on April 16,1996. The
purpose of the Plan is to secure for the Company and its shareholders the benefits arising from capital stock
ownership by employees, ollicers and directors of, and consultants or advisors to, the Company who are
expected to contribute to the Company's future grow th and success. Options granted pursuant to the Plan may
be either incentive stock options meeting the requirements of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code or
non-statutory eptions which are not intended to meet the requirements of Section 422. The maximum number
of shares of Common Stock that may be issued and sold under the Plan is 600,000 shares. The Plan will be
administered by the Board of Directors of the Company and may be modified or amended by the Board in any
respect, subject to shareholder approval in certain instances.

Upon the merger of Great Bay and a newly-formed wholly-ow ned subsidiary of BayCorp on January 24,
1997, each holder of Great Bay options under the Great Bay Option Plan was granted substitute options by
BayCorp under the BayCorp Stock Option Plan to purchase an equal number of shares of BayCorp Common
Stock on the same terms and at the same exercise price per share as presently provided for by the Great Bay
Options. The BayCorp Stock Option Plan is identical to the Great Bay Stock Option Plan. The Great Bay
Stock Option Plan was terrrinated as of the efTective date of the merger.

The Company accounts for the plan under APB Opinion No. 25, under uhich no compensation cost has
been recognized as the options are granted at Fair Market Value.

Ilad compensation cost for the plan been determined consistent with FASB Statement No.123,
Accounting for Stock Based Compensation, the Company's net income and earnings per share would have
been reduced to the following pro forma amounts.

(Dollan in thousandQ
IW7 IW6

Net income: As Reported . $( 11.215) $4,100
Pro Forma (l1,414) 3,475

EPS: As Reported . $ ( 1.35) $ 0.51.

Pro Forma (1.38) 0.43

Because the Statement 123 method of accounting has not been applied to options granted prior to
January 1,1995, the resulting pro forma compensation cost may not be representative of that to be expected in
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future years. A summary of the Company's stock option plan at December 31,1997,1996 and 1995, and
changes during the years then ended, is presented in the table and narrative below:

1997 19 %

Wtd Atg Wtd Avg
Shares . Ex Price Shares Ex Price

Outstanding at beg. of year. . . . . . . . . 445,000 $8.15 335,000 $8.17
.. . . ..

G ranted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 60,000 7.33 110.000 8.09
..... . .. .... .

Exercised . . . . . . . .
- - -

.. ... . . . . . .. .

Forfeited i . . . . . . . . . . - - -

4.. ..... . . .... . . .

- Expired . . . . . . - - -

.. . . .. ..... ..... .. ... .

Outstanding at end of year . . . . . . . . . 505,000 8.05 445,000 8.15
. .. . . .

Exercisable at end of year.. 425,000 8.04 285,000 8.17
... . .. . . .

Weighted average fair value of options granted . . . . .. . $ 3.32 $ 4.51

The 505,000 options outstanding at December 31,1997 have exercise prices between $7.25 and $9, with a
weighted average price of $8.05, and a remaining weighted average contractual life of 5.8 years.

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model with the following assumptions used for grants in 1997,1996 and 1995 respectively: weighted
average risk-free interest rates of 6.7. 6.7 and 6.8 percent; expected dividend yields of 0 percent; weighted
average expected lives of 7,6 and 9 years; and expected volatility of 27 percent.

9. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In February 1997, the FASB issued SFAS 128, " Earnings Per Share" effective for both interim and
annual periods ending after December 15,1907. SFAS 128 establishes standards for computing and presenting
earnings per share ("EPS"). The Company has adopted SFAS 128 and it did not have any material impact on
the Company's computation and presentation of basic EPS.

10. PROPERTY TAXES

For each of the tax years 1994,1995,1996 and 1997. Great Bay filed property tax abatement applications
.

with the' town of Seabrook and two other New Ilampshire towns in which the Seabrook Project is located.
Great Bay paid the 1994,1995 and half of the 1996 property taxes billed by the Towns of Seabrook, llampton
and llampton Falls, New llampshire (collectively, the " Towns") but withheld payment of the second half of
the 1996 property taxes billed by the Towns, based on Great Bay's position that the portion of 1996 property

. taxes paid to the Towns exceeded the amount of the total 1996 property taxes appropriately payable by Great
Bay to' the Towns. Great Bay also withheld the first half of its 1997 property taxes to the Towns. The

. abatement request for tax years 1994,1995 and 1996 were denied. Great Bay filed appeals for each of those
years with the New llampshire Board of Tax and Land Appeals. The appeals are currently pending and a
hearing on the first phase of these appeals is scheduled for May 12,1998.

In December 1996, eight of the Joint Owners of the Seabrook Project (the " Demanding Joint Owners")
served a demand on Great Bay for arbitration of a dispute between Great Bay and the Demanding Joint
Owners concerning the allocation among the joint owners of real property taxes assessed by the Towns against
the Seabrook Project. Great Bay claimed that the Joint Owners Agreement does not provide for allocation of
real estate tax liabilities in proportion to each joir't owner's ownership interest in the Seabrook Project. The
Demanding Joint Owners claimed that real estate taxes should be allocated in accordance with each
Participant's ownership interest.
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in Septembe- 1997, the arbitrator issued a decision requiring Great Bay to pay its share of all property
taxes assessed upon the Seabrook Project in a single tax bill in accordance with Great Bay's percentage

: ownership in the Seabrook Project. Accordingly, in October 1997, Great Bay paid under protest $3,168,903 for
property taxes and accrued interest for the second half of 1996 and the first half of 1997 to the Towns, in
December 1997, Great Bay paid $1.266,194 for property taxes due to the Towns for the second half of 1997.

The arbitrator's decision does not afTect the tax abatement litigation pending against the Towns for tax
years 1994 through 1997, nor does it alTect Great Bay's ability to assert that it is entitled to a separate tax bill ;

and assessment from the Towns. In addition, on February 28,1997 and February 27,1998, NAESCO, the '

[ current managing agent for the Seabrook Project, purported to file tax abatement applications on behalf of all
the Joint Owners for the 1996 and 1997 tax years, respectively,

11. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On February 12,1998, Great Bay sent a letter to PECO informing PECO that Great Bay intended to l

terminate PECO as Great Bay's exclusive marketing agent. On February 24,1998, Great Bay filed suit against
PECO in the United States District Court for the District of New Hampshire seeking a declaratoryjudgment
that Great Bay properly terminated the PECO Services Agreement and seeking damages arising out of
PECO's breach of the PECO Services Agreement. In its complaint, Great Bay alleges that (i) PECO has
entered into a number of wholesale power agreements in its own name and for its own benefit without bringing
these opportunities to Great Bay's attention or submitting bids on behalf of Great Bay and (ii) PECO failed to
offer Creat Bay's power on a firm basis to customers as required under the PECO Services Agreement. On
February 27, 1998, Great Bay sent a letter to PECO notifying PECO that the Services Agreement was
terminated.

On March 10,1998, PECO filed a motion in the United States District Court for the District of New
llampshire for a prelirninaiy injuction to prevent Great Bay from terminating the PECO Services Agreement. i

At that time, PECO also filed counterclaims seeking damages in an amount in excess of $5,000,000 for alleged
breach of contract, alleged loss of goodwill and alleged harm to PECO's reputation. PECO's counterclaim
contained seven counts: breach of contract / wrongful termination, breach of exclusivity promise, breach of the

. covenant of good faith and fair dealing, unjust enrichment, defamation, unfair trade practices and an action for
declaratory judgment. Great Bay believes that PECO's motion and counterclaims are without merit. Great
Bay intends to vigorously pursue its claims against PECO. On March 19,1998, a hearing was held on PECO's i

motion for a preliminary injuction. The judge took the matter under advisement and is expected to issue a
decision shortly.

>
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SIGNATUltES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the ;

registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

BayCorp lloidings, Ltd.

March 24,1998 By: /s/ JOllN A. TILUNGilAST
John A. Tillinghast

President

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below (
by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ JOllN A. TitusoliAsT President, Treasurer and Chief Executive March 24,1998

John A. Tillinghast Ollicer (principal executive officer, principal
financial othcer and pnncipal accounting
ofIicer)
Director

Kenneth A. Buckfire

/s/ STANI.LY 1. GARNETT Director March 24,1998

Stanley 1. Garnett

/s/ ANDREW J. KURTz Director March 24,1998

Andrew J. Kurtz

Director
'

Charles A. Leeds, Jr.
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Eshibit
Number Dewription of Exhibit

3.1 - Certificate of incorporation of the Registrant.(1)
3.2 - By-laws of the Registrant.(1)

10.1 - Agreement Between Bangor flydro-Electric Company, Central Maine Power Company, Central
Vermont Public Service Corporation, Fitchburg Gas and Electric Light Company, Maine
Public Service Company and EUA Power Corporation relating to use of certain transmission
facilities, dated October 20, 1986.(2)

10.2 - Limited Guaranty by Eastern Utilities Associates of Decommissioning Costs in favor of Joint
Owners of the Seabrook Project, dated May 5, 1990.(2)

10.3 - Composite Agreement for Joint Ownership, Construction and Operation of New llampshire
Nuclear Units, as amended, dated November 1, 1990.(2)

10.4 - Seventh Amendment to and Restated Agreement for Seabrook Project Disbursing Agent as
amended through and including the Second Amendment, by and among North Atlantic Energy
Service Corporation, Great Bay Power Corporation and other Seabrook Project owners, dated
November I,1990.(2)

10.5 - Seabrook Project Managing Agent Operating Agreement by and among the North Atlantic
Energy Service Corporation, Great Bay Power Corporation and parties to the Joint Ownership
Agreement, dated June 29, 1992.(2)

10.6 - Settlement Agreement by and among EUA Power Corporation, Eastern Utilities Associates and
the Official Bondholders' Committee, dated November 18, 1992.(2)

10.7 - Purchased Power Agreement between UNITIL Power Corporation and Great Bay Power
Corporation, dated April 26, 1993.(2)

10.8 - Power Purchase Option Agreement between UNITIL Power Corporation and Great Bay Power
Corporation, dated April 26, 1993.(2)

10.9 - Second Mortgage and Security Agreement between UNITIL Power Corporation and Great Bay
Power Corporation, dated December 22, 1993.(2)

10.10 - Third Mortgage and Security Agreement between UNITIL Power Corporation and Great Bay
Power Corporation, dated December 22,1993.(2)

10.11 - Registration Rights Agreement between Great Bay Power Corporation and the Selling
Stockholders, dated April 7,1994 (the " Registration Rights Agreement") (2)

10.12 - Amendment to Registration Rights Agreement between Great Bay Power Corporation and the
Selling Stockholders, dated November 23,1994.(2)

10.13 - Stock and Subscription Agreement among Great Bay Power Corporation and the Selling
Stockholders, dated April 7, 1994.(2)

10.14 - Acknowledgment and Amendment to Stock and Subscription Agreement, dated November 23,
1994.(2)

10.15 - Settlement Agreement by and among Great Bay Power Corporation, the Ollicial Bondholders'
Committee and the Selling Stockholders, dated September 9,1994.(2)

10.16 - Letter Agreement, dated December 20,1994, between Great Bay Power Corporation and the
Selling Stockholders amending Registration Rights Agreement, as previously amended on
November 23, 1994.(2)

10.17 - Letter Agreement, dated March 29,1995, between Great Bay Power Corporation and the
Selling Stockholders amending Registration Rights Agreement, as previously amended on
November 23,1994 and December 20, 1994.(2)
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Eshibit
Number Description of Eshibit

10.18 - Employment Agreement between John A. Tillinghast and Great Bay Power Corporatmn, dated
' October 8, 1996.(3)(8)

10.19 - Incentive Stock Option Agreement, dated as of April 24,1995, by and between John A.
Tillinghast and Great Bay Power Corporation.(4)(8) >

10.20 - Employment Agreement between Frank W. Getman Jr. and Great Bay Power Corporation,
dated August 1, 1995.(5)(8)

10.21' - Amendment No. I to Employment Agreement between Frank W. Getman Jr. and Great Bay
Power Corporation, dated September 17, 1996.(3)(8)

10.22 - Incentive Stock Option Agreement, dated as of August 1,1995, by and between Frank W. }
Getman Jr. and Great Bay Power Corporation.(4)(8)

10.23 - Incentive Stock Option Agreement, dated as of September 17,1996, by and between Frank W.
Getman Jr. and Great Bay Power Corporation.(3)(8)

10.24 - Services Agreemeat between PECO Energy Company and Great Bay Power Corporation, dated
November 3, 1995.(6)(7)

,

10.25 - Warrant Purchase Agreement between PECO Energy Company and Great Bay Power
Corporation, dated November 3, 1995.(5)

10.26 - 1996 Stock Option Plan of the Registrant.(l)(8)
21.1 - List of Subsidiaries of the Registrant.(9)

23.1 - Consent of Arthur Andersen LLP.(9)

(1) Filed a7an exhibit to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-4 (Registration Statement
333-3362) filed on July 12,1996 and incorporated herein by reference.

(2) Filed as an exhibit to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 of Great Bay Power Corporation
(Registration No. 33-88232) declared effective on April 17,1995 and incorporated herein by reference.

(3) Filed as an exhibit to the Company's Ar.naal Report on Form 10-K (File No. 1-12527) on March 26,
1997 and incorporated herein by reference. ;

(4) Filed as an exhibit to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Great Bay Power Corporation for the
quarter ended March 31,1995 (File No. 0-25748) on May 9,1995 and incorporated herein by reference.

(5) Filed as an exhibit to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Great Bay Power Corporation for the
quarter ended June 30,1995 (File No. 0-25748) on August 14, 1995 and incorporated herein by
reference.

(6) Filed as an exhibit to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Great Bay Power Corporation for the
quarter ended September 30,1995 (File No. 0-25748) on November 14,1995 and incorporated herein by
reference.

(7) Confidential treatment granted as to certain portions.

(8) Management cantract or compensation plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit pursuant to
Item 14(c) of Form 10-K.

(9) Filed as an exhibit to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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